
ST. LUCIE WEST  
SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
DECEMBER 6, 2016 

9:00 A.M. 
Page 1



 
 

 
AGENDA 

ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 

WORKSHOP & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
December 5, 2016 & December 6, 2016 

9:00 a.m. 
450 SW Utility Drive 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986 
 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Election of Officers 

 Chairman 

 Vice Chairman 

 Secretary/Treasurer 

 Assistant Secretaries 
E. Approval of Minutes  

1. October 31, 2016 Workshop Minutes 

2. November 1, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

F. Public Hearing 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Proof of Publication 

4. Receive Public Comments on Amending Chapter A-I of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services 
District – General and Procedural Rules; Providing an Effective Date 
 

 PH – Consider Resolution No. 2015-08 – Amending Chapter A-I of the Rules of the St. Lucie West 
Services District – General and Procedural Rules; Providing an Effective Date 
 

5. Close the Public Hearing 

G. Public Comment 

H. District Attorney 

DA 1 –  Status Report/Updates 

I. District Engineer 

DE 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 

J. District Manager 

Action Items 

DM  1 – Consider Approval of Agreement for Legal Services with the Law Offices of David Miklas, PA 
 

DM  2 – Other Items/Updates 

 Page 2



 

 

K. Consent Agenda 

CA  1 –    Monthly Report on Public Works Department  

CA  2 –  Monthly Report on Utilities Operations  

CA  3 –  Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects  

CA  4 –  Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service  

CA  5 –  Financial Statements for October, 2016 

CA  6 – Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R Account Requisitions 

L. Supervisors’ Requests  

M. Adjournment 

Page 3



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 1 of 7 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Workshop Minutes 

October 31, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. 
450 SW Utility Drive 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986 
 
(Please note:  This is not verbatim.  A CD recording of the Workshop is available on file.) 
 
Board Members Present 
 
Vincent D’Amico, Chairman 
Gregg Ney, Vice Chairman 
Wayne Smith, Secretary 
Everett Child, Supervisor 
 
Staff Present 
 
Dennis Pickle, District Manager, St. Lucie West Services District (“SLWSD”) 
Maddie Maldonado, Office Manager, SLWSD 
Jason Pierman, District Treasurer, Special District Services, Inc. (“SDS”) 
 
Guests Present (Sign-In Sheet Attached) 
 
A. Call to Order 
 
Chairman D’Amico called the Workshop to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
It was noted that all Supervisors were present with the exception of Supervisor 
Charles B. Altwein. 
 
D. Approval of Minutes 
 1.  October 3, 2016, Workshop 
 2.  October 4, 2016, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes were presented and the Board was asked if they had any revisions 
and/or corrections. 
 
There were no revisions and/or corrections to either set of minutes. 
 
E. Public Comment 
 
Tom Mackiewicz of PJ Development, LLC, presented a proposal for erecting a cell 
phone tower on District property.  Mr. Mackiewicz distributed pictures of the tower 
and indicated that he would like to have community meetings to find out their 

Page 4



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 2 of 7 

thoughts.  He noted that the tower would be up to 140’ high and that the flag pole 
would be painted a bright white.  Unipoles are painted grey to black.  Mr. Pickle 
indicated that they had discussed possibly erecting one near the District’s water 
plant.  Supervisor Child confirmed the hurricane rating.  Vice Chairman Ney noted 
that the closest community had already expressed their negative feelings about it.  
Vice Chairman Ney confirmed that the land would be leased with a cancellation 
option.  Mr. Pickle advised Mr. Mackiewicz that the Board would take action on the 
proposal at tomorrow’s meeting to possibly set up community meetings on the 
matter. 
 
F. District Attorney 
 DA 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Pickle was not aware of any items which Mr. Harrell might bring up at tomorrow’s 
meeting. 
 
G. District Engineer 
 DE 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Pickle indicated that Mr. Lawson would be bringing Work Authorization No. 7A-
54-1610-R between the District and Florida City Gas to the Board for consideration at 
tomorrow’s meeting.  Mr. Pickle noted that it was a standard work authorization to 
install a gas main within the right of way of NW Enterprise Drive and NW Interpark 
Place to serve the property located at 541 NW Interpark Place. 
 
There was no discussion on this matter. 
 
Mr. Pickle then advised that the 4E/5 project was winding down. 
 
H. District Manager 
 Action Items 
 
 DM 1 – Consider Approval of the Administration Office’s New Hours 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the item and indicated that the new hours were from 8:00 a.m. 
until 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  He also noted that there was 100% 
employee support for this change.  Vice Chairman Ney asked if employees were 
allotted 30 minutes for lunch to which Mr. Pickle indicated that they were or in the 
alternative, two 15 minute breaks with no lunch.  Mr. Pickle stated that this change 
had been proposed because there is very low activity between 4:00 p.m. and 5:00 
p.m.; maybe one customer would come in.  Secretary Smith indicated that the most 
important thing to him was that the employees were okay with the change.  Mr. Pickle 
indicated that after giving the employees 3 options, this change was unanimously 
voted for.  He also indicated that he has the authority to change the hours back, if 
there are issues. 
 
There was no further discussion regarding this item. 
 

Page 5



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 3 of 7 

 DM 2 – Consider Approval of the Paid Time Off Policy and Emergency 
Leave Policy Summary 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the proposed changes in Sections 302 and 310, noting that 
Section 310 would eventually disappear as employees use their emergency leave.  
He indicated that these proposed changes would become effective January 1, 2017, 
and that he has received no negative feedback. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked why the District could lose money implementing this new 
policy.  Mr. Pickle indicated that employees can cash in PTO time and that the Board 
was given the worst case scenario, if everyone left at once. 
 
Bill Hayden, SLWSD Public Works Director/Assistant District Manager, arrived at 
9:34 a.m. 
 
Mr. Pickle explained that the manual is approved as of November 1, 2016, but the 
policy takes effect on January 1, 2017. 
 
There was no further discussion regarding this matter. 
 
 DM 3 – Consider Approval of the Cellphone Stipend Policy 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the policy and indicated that it was being proposed due to 
potential District exposure to increased cellphone costs and damage equipment 
during the work day.  He also noted that employees had expressed concerns over 
carrying two cellphones and the potential of losing or damaging one.  Mr. Pickle 
stated that the proposal is an expense neutral exposure to the District, the stipend 
will be optional, and that the employee could decline the stipend and continue to use 
the District assigned cellphone for business use only.  Mr. Pickle noted that if the 
policy is approved, the budget will need to be amended to reflect the cellphone 
stipend for each department.  He also noted that the proposed changes would 
become effective January 1, 2017. 
 
Chairman D’Amico noted that there would be a savings of having to replace 
damaged phones with this policy. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked how many cell phones are currently provided to which Mr. 
Pickle indicated that all employees have a cell phone with different plans (calls, data 
and text). 
 
Secretary Smith asked if new phone numbers would be required.  Mr. Pickle 
indicated that all employees would be required to have an area code 772 phone 
number. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked what kind of feedback had been received regarding this 
proposed change.  Mr. Pickle indicated that the change was strictly voluntary and that 
it was proposed due to employee requests. 
 

Page 6



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 4 of 7 

There was no further discussion regarding this item. 
 
 DM 4 – Consider Approval for the Purchase of a 2017 Ford F-250 Service 
Body Truck and a 2017 Ford F-150 Super Cab for the Utilities Division 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the item indicating that the F-250 would mainly be used for the 
Plant Mechanic and that the F-150 would be used by the Assistant Utilities Director.  
He stated that staff had accepted proposals from three Florida vendors for the two 
trucks.  Below are the proposals that were received: 
 
  F-250 F-150 
 
Gilbert Ford of Okeechobee $ 39,999.50 $24,850.50 
Velde Ford of Vero Beach $ 41,914.45 $28,145.45 
Bartow Ford of Bartow $ 40,948.00 $28,896.00 
 
Mr. Pickle noted that this purchase was budgeted from the Utility Administration 
Division Capital Outlay Equipment Code.  He also noted that one of the old trucks 
would be surplus and the other one would go to an assistant mechanic to use 
periodically. 
 
A brief discussion ensued.  Secretary Smith asked if the trucks go home with 
employees and Mr. Pickle replied that they do, unless the employee is going on 
vacation. 
 
There was no further discussion on this item. 
 
 DM 5 – Consider Approval for the Purchase of a 2017 Case 580 SN 
Combination Backhoe/Loader 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the item and Mr. Hayden explained its features.  Staff had 
received a proposal from Trekker Tractor of Florida for the purchase of a 2017 580 
SN Combination Backhoe/Loader to replace the District’s existing 2006 Holland unit.  
He indicated that only one proposal had been received because the price was off the 
Florida Sheriffs’ Association Contract # FSA16-VEH14.0. 
 
Contract Sales Price: $ 93,000.46 
Trade-In Price:  12,000.00 
Total Adjusted Price with Options: $ 81,000.46 
 
Mr. Hayden indicated that the cost of the unit would be split between the Utility 
Underground Division and the Public Works Stormwater Division.  Mr. Pickle noted 
that the General Fund was being charged an extra $1,000 because of the arm option. 
 
Secretary Smith asked how often staff uses the one the District currently owns.  Mr. 
Hayden indicated that it is used every day and that the standard is that it is replaced 
every 8 to 10 years (equivalent to approximately 4,000 usage hours.).  A question 

Page 7



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 5 of 7 

arose as to service costs to which Mr. Hayden responded that most service is done 
in-house.   
 
There was no further discussion on this item. 
 
 DM 6 – Consider Resolution No. 2016-07 – Adopting an Amended Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the item entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016 BUDGET; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Pickle noted that it should read the 2016 Actual, not 2015. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked how the District compares to last year.  Mr. Pickle 
indicated, conservatively, that the District is approximately $500,000 better than last 
year.   
 
Supervisor Child noted that it would be nice to know the bottom line.  Mr. Pierman 
indicated that the audited numbers would be better because we are still receiving 
prior fiscal year invoices. 
 
There was no further discussion on this matter. 
 
 DM 7 – Other Items/Updates 
 
Mr. Pickle advised the Board that he was going on vacation this week.  He also noted 
that the Public Hearing on legal defense would be held at the December meeting due 
to Public Hearing Notice requirements. 
 
Mr. Pickle indicated that there are still 149 end line blow offs that require installation. 
 
Mr. Pickle also noted that he may have to take an extended time off to deal with 
property in North Carolina. 
 
That concluded Mr. Pickle’s updates. 
 
I. Consent Agenda 
 
Mr. Pickle presented Consent Agenda items CA 1 through CA 6. 
 
 CA 1 - Monthly Report on Public Works Department 
 
 CA 2 - Monthly Report on Utilities Operations 

Page 8



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 6 of 7 

 
 CA 3 - Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects 
 
 CA 4 - Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service 
 
 CA 5 - Financial Statements for September, 2016 
 

 CA 6 - Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R and WCF 
Account Requisitions 

 
There was no discussion regarding Consent Agenda items CA 1 through CA 6. 
 
J. Supervisor Requests 
 
Vice Chairman Ney noted that he was not in favor of the erecting of a cell phone 
tower on District property. 
 
Secretary Smith believes that Mr. Mackiewicz should be given time to provide 
additional information on it. 
 
Supervisor Child asked how the Bank of America pump station was going.  Mr. Pickle 
indicated that nothing was going on as of yet.  He noted that he had not received 
anything further from Ross. 
 
There were no further Supervisor Requests. 
 
K. Adjournment 
 
There being no further items to be addressed, the Workshop was adjourned at 
10:356a.m.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
 
   
 

Page 9



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Minutes of October 31, 2016  Page 7 of 7 

Workshop Minutes Signature Page 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 
 
 
 

Page 10



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 1 of 7 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

November 1, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. 
450 SW Utility Drive 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986 
 
 
(Please note:  This is not verbatim.  A CD recording of the Regular Board Meeting is available 
on file.) 
 
Board Members Present 
 
Vincent D’Amico, Chairman 
Gregg Ney, Vice Chairman 
Wayne Smith, Secretary 
Everett Child, Supervisor 
 
Staff Present 
 
Dennis Pickle, District Manager, St. Lucie West Services District (“SLWSD”) 
Maddie Maldonado, Office Manager, SLWSD 
Lisa Beans, Administrative Assistant, SLWSD 
Dan Harrell, District Counsel, Gonano & Harrell 
Bob Lawson, District Engineer, ARCADIS-US, Inc. 
Jason Pierman, District Treasurer, Special District Services, Inc. (“SDS”) 
Laura Archer, Recording Secretary, SDS 
 
Guests Present (Sign-In Sheet Attached) 
 
A. Call to Order 
 
Chairman D’Amico called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
It was noted that all Supervisors were present with the exception of Supervisor 
Charles B. Altwein. 
 
D. Approval of Minutes 
 1.  October 3, 2016, Workshop 
 2.  October 4, 2016, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes were presented for Board approval. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Child, seconded by Secretary Smith, approving 
the Workshop Minutes of October 3, 2016, as presented, and the October 4, 2016, 

Page 11



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 2 of 7 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes, as presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion 
carried 4 to 0. 
 
E. Public Comment 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
F. District Attorney 
 DA 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Harrell distributed a copy of the Surplus Real Property Sale by SLWSD 
Agreement Summary (as Revised by Fifth Amendment and Fourth Extension of Site 
Plan & Zoning Approval Period).  Mr. Harrell noted that in order to move forward with 
the sale of the property that the execution of a Deed of Conservation Easement 
would be necessary.  He indicated that it would offset upland reserve and avoids 
mitigation payment for offsite areas.  He recommended approval. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Child, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney 
approving the execution of the Deed of Conservation Easement between the SLWSD 
and the City of Port St. Lucie, as presented. 
 
Under discussion, Secretary Smith asked for confirmation that the property was not 
saleable.  Mr. Harrell indicated only upland habitat. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked the specific location of the property.  Mr. Lawson showed 
on a map the specific location. 
 
Supervisor Child’s motion was reiterated, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney and 
passed unanimously approving the execution of the Deed of Conservation Easement 
between the SLWSD and the City of Port St. Lucie, which will be held in escrow until 
the sale goes through. 
 
Mr. Harrell had no further updates. 
 
G. District Engineer 
 DE 1 – Consider Approval of Work Authorization No. 7A-54-1610-R 
between SLWSD and Florida City Gas 
 
It was noted that Mr. Pickle had explained this work authorization the previous day. 
 
A motion was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Smith approving 
Work Authorization No. 7A-54-1610-R between the SLWSD and Florida City Gas, as 
presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
 DE 2 – Status Reports/Updates 
 

Page 12



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 3 of 7 

Mr. Lawson advised that the 4E/5 canal construction had been completed and that 
the entire project would be completely finished at the end of November. He noted 
that he would have a small change order after the sidewalk has been repaired. 
 
Mr. Lawson noted that they were working out the kinks in plat on the Lake Harvey 
Project and that it would be ready to the City soon. 
 
That concluded Mr. Lawson’s updates. 
 
H. District Manager 
 Action Items 
 
 DM 1 – Consider Approval of the Administration Office’s New Hours 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the item and reminded the Board Members that the new 
Administration Office hours would be from 8:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. and take effect 
January 1, 2017.  He noted that the new hours would be posted in 
November/December bills, on the office door and online. 
 
A motion was made by Secretary Smith, seconded by Supervisor Child and 
unanimously passed approving new Administrative office hours, effective January 1, 
2017, to be changed from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday. 
 
 DM 2 – Consider Approval of the Paid Time Off Policy and Emergency 
Leave Policy Summary 
 
Mr. Pickle indicated that this item had been discussed at yesterday’s Workshop.  He 
recommended approval. 
 
A motion was made by Secretary Smith, seconded by Supervisor Child approving 
the proposed changes to Section 302, Paid Time Off Policy and Section 310, 
Emergency Leave Policy, as presented. 
 
Under discussion, Mr. Pickle requested that the motion be amended to reflect 
authorization for the budget amendment.  Both the maker of the motion and the 
second agreed to said amendment. 
 
Secretary Smith’s motion was reiterated, seconded by Supervisor Child approving 
the proposed changes to Section 302, Paid Time Off Policy and Section 310, 
Emergency Leave Policy, and authorizing the budget amendment for fiscal Year 
2017, effective January 1, 2017, as presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion 
carried 4 to 0. 
 
 DM 3 – Consider Approval of the Cellphone Stipend Policy 
 

Page 13



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 4 of 7 

Mr. Pickle presented the item, noting that it was expense neutral and he 
recommended approval. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Child, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney 
approving the proposed Cellphone Stipend Policy and authorizing the budget 
amendment for fiscal year 2017, effective January 1, 2017, as presented. 
 
Under discussion Vice Chairman Ney asked if this policy could be discontinued or 
made obligatory in the future.  Mr. Pickle indicated that either could occur, if 
determined to be necessary. 
 
Supervisor Child’s motion was reiterated, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney 
approving the proposed Cellphone Stipend Policy and authorizing the budget 
amendment for fiscal year 2017, effective January 1, 2017, and with the projected 
budget figures, as presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
 DM 4 – Consider Approval for the Purchase of a 2017 Ford F-250 Service 
Body Truck and a 2017 Ford F-150 Super Cab for the Utilities Division 
 
Mr. Pickle presented the item indicating that it had been explained the previous day. 
 
A motion was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Supervisor Child 
approving the purchase of a 2017 Ford F-250 Service Body Truck and a 2017 Ford 
F-150 Super Cab for the Utilities Division for the not to exceed amount of $64,850, 
from Gilbert Ford of Okeechobee, as presented. 
 
Under discussion, Vice Chairman Ney asked if there were more funds in the budget 
for vehicle purchases for the rest of the year.  Mr. Pickle indicated that there are 
funds in other budgets. 
 
Secretary Smith asked about the surplus vehicle to which Mr. Pickle indicated it 
would be handed down to the assistant mechanic and so forth. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney’s motion was reiterated, seconded by Supervisor Child 
approving the purchase of a 2017 Ford F-250 Service Body Truck and a 2017 Ford 
F-150 Super Cab for the Utilities Division for the not to exceed amount of $64,850, 
from Gilbert Ford of Okeechobee, as presented.  The Available Project Budget being 
$65,000.00; This Project cost being $64,850.00; leaving an Available Balance of 
$150.00. 
 
 DM 5 – Consider Approval for the Purchase of a 2017 Case 580 SN 
Combination Backhoe/Loader 
 
Mr. Hayden presented the item and noted that it had been explained the previous 
day.  He recommended approval. 
 

Page 14



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 5 of 7 

Vice Chairman Ney referred to a comment made the previous day wherein it was 
noted that the backhoe/loader is driven to each location.  He was concerned about 
the miles and stress on the equipment and asked about the possibility of a flatbed 
truck to haul it locations.  Mr. Pickle indicated that it would cause additional time to 
get it loaded and then unloaded when the actual job could have been completed in 
that amount of time.  Mr. Pickle did indicate that he would, however, look into it. 
 
A motion was made by Secretary Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney and 
passed unanimously approving the purchase of a 2017 Case 580 SN Combination 
Backhoe/Loader from Trekker Tractor for the not to exceed amount of $81,000.46. 
The Available Project Budget bring $83,500.00; This Project cost being $40,000.00 
from ORG Number 5-32101; This Project cost being $41,000.46 from ORG Number 
1-34101; leaving an Available Balance of $2,499.54, as presented. 
 
 DM 6 – Consider Resolution No. 2016-07 – Adopting an Amended Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016 BUDGET; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Pickle noted that an amended budget must be adopted within 60 days of the end 
of the fiscal year, per Florida Statutes.  Mr. Pickle also pointed out that the first 
column on Pages 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 should read FY 2016 Actual.  He indicated that that 
correction would be made. 
 
A motion was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Supervisor Child 
approving Resolution No. 2016-07, as presented. 
 
Under discussion, Supervisor Child asked about a net worth as of today versus last 
year.  Mr. Pickle indicated that that number could not yet be determined, but he 
believes that the District did about $500,000 better than last year. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney’s motion was reiterated, seconded by Supervisor Child 
approving Resolution No. 2016-07, as presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the 
motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
 DM 7 – Other Items/Updates 
 
Mr. Pierman gave an update on Supervisor Fees for the year. 
 
Chairman D’Amico brought up the topic of the cell phone tower.   
 
Vice Chairman Ney made a motion to not approve the tower on our main campus, 
although he is open to another location.  Supervisor Child seconded. 

Page 15



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 6 of 7 

 
Under discussion, Supervisor Child went on to suggest that PJ Development, LLC be 
advised not to go forth with his proposal due to insufficient advantage for District 
residents. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney went further by indicating that PJ Development, LLC should be 
advised that nothing will be erected on the main campus property. 
 
Discussion ensued about other property that could be offered and the fact that 
residents are not crazy about the idea. 
 
Discussion then ensued about modifying the motion to state that the Board is 
rejecting the PJ Development, LLC proposal based on the location of the cell phone 
tower to be erected on the District’s main campus, but that other suggestions will be 
considered on a case by case basis.  Both the maker of the motion and the second 
agreed to the modification. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney’s motion was modified to the following:  a motion was made 
rejecting the PJ Development, LLC proposal based on the location of the cell phone 
tower to be erected on the District’s main campus, but that other suggestions would 
be considered on a case by case basis.  Supervisor Child seconded and upon being 
put to a vote, the motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
I. Consent Agenda 
 CA 1 - Monthly Report on Public Works Department 
 
 CA 2 - Monthly Report on Utilities Operations 
 
 CA 3 - Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects 
 
 CA 4 - Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service 
 
 CA 5 - Financial Statements for August, 2016 
 

 CA 6 - Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R and WCF 
Account Requisitions 

 
Consent Agenda Items CA 1 through CA 6 were presented for Board consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Supervisor Child, 
approving Consent Agenda Items 1 through 6, as presented.  Upon being put to a 
vote, the motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
Mr. Pickle indicated that he would let Mr. Mackiewicz know the Board’s decision. 
 
 
J. Supervisor Requests 

Page 16



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016  Page 7 of 7 

 
Supervisor Child wanted to thank Mr. Mackiewicz for his presentation. 
 
Chairman D’Amico asked if Mr. Lawson if he had an update on the Lake Harvey 
stormwater assessment.  Mr. Lawson indicated that it was determined that the 
District does not have to pay a stormwater assessment on the property. 
 
There were no further requests. 
 
K. Adjournment 
 
There being no further items to be addressed, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 10:08 a.m.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Signature Page 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 
 
 
 

Page 17



St. Lucie West Services District 
 Board Agenda Item 
 Tuesday, December 6, 2016 

Item                                                                                                                                                             
PH 1 Public Hearing to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-08 of the St. Lucie West Services District 

Amending Chapter A-I of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District – General 
and Procedural Rules; Providing an Effective Date.                       

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                    

Provided for your review and consideration is the Adoption of Resolution 2016-08 Amending Chapter A-I of the 
Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District–General and Procedural Rules; Providing an Effective Date. 
 
The Public Hearing was advertised in the St. Lucie News Tribune on October 17, 2016. The attached affidavit of 
publication verifies that advertisement of the public hearing was published within the general circulation at least 
28 days prior to the public hearing on December 6, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation                                                                                                                                        
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2016-08 Amending Chapter A-I of the Rules of the St. Lucie West 
Services District General and Procedural Rules; Providing an Effective Date. 
 
District Manager:  Dennis Pickle 
 

Budget Impact 
Project Number:  Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:  This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 

Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 
 
 

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-08 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING CHAPTER A-I, ST. LUCIE WEST 
SERVICES DISTRICT GENERAL AND PROCEDURAL RULES; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 SECTION 1. AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 

pursuant to Sections 111.07, 120.54, 190.011(5), and 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 SECTION 2. FINDINGS.  The Board of Supervisors of the St. Lucie West Services 

District ("Board") hereby finds and determines as follows: 

 A. The St. Lucie West Services District ("District") is a local unit of special-

purpose government organized and existing under and pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 

Statutes, as amended. 

 B. The Board is authorized under Chapters 120 and 190, Florida Statutes, to 

adopt this Resolution as a Rule of the District. 

 C. The purpose of this Rule is to amend certain policies of the District that re-

late to the general operations of the District and in particular to adopt a new Subsection 

1.20 to Chapter A-I regarding legal defense and indemnification.  

 D. This Rule is necessary to establish and maintain policies and procedures 

pertaining to the legal defense and indemnification of Board members, officers, and em-

ployees of the District acting on behalf of the District.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT: 

SECTION 3. CHAPTER A-I AMENDED.  Chapter A-I St. Lucie West Services Dis-

trict General and Procedural Rules is hereby amended to read as set forth in the attached revision 

of such policies (with new text shown in underline). 

Page 21



 2

 SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Rule shall become effective on December 6, 

2016.  

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of December, 2016. 
 
      ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
Attest: 
 
 
           By:         
Secretary     Chairman 
Board of Supervisors     Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

Page 22



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	1	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

ST.	LUCIE	WEST	SERVICES	DISTRICT	GENERAL	AND	PROCEDURAL	RULES	

TABLE	OF	CONTENTS	
	 	

A‐1.01	 General	 2	

A‐1.02	 Board	of	Supervisors;	Officers;	Voting	 3	

A‐1.03	 District	Manager	 	 6	

A‐1.04	 Public	Information	and	Inspection	of	Records	 7	

A‐1.05	 Meetings	and	Workshop	 8	

A‐1.06	 Rulemaking	Proceedings	 12	

A‐1.07	 Declaratory	Statements	 14	

A‐1.08	 Decisions	Determining	Substantial	Interests	 15	

A‐1.09	 Procedure	for	Procuring	Professional	Services;	Protest	 17	

A‐1.10	 Procedure	of	Purchasing	Contractual	Services	 18	

A‐1.11	 Purchase	of	Goods,	Supplies	or	Materials	 23	

A‐1.12	 Contracts	for	Construction	of	Authorized	Project	 27	

A‐1.13	 Contracts	for	Maintenance	Services	 32	

A‐1.14	 Purchase	of	Insurance	for	District	Employees	 37	

A‐1.15	 Bid	Protests	of	Construction	Contracts	 39	

A‐1.16	 Bid	Protests	Relating	to	Any	Other	Award	 41	

A‐1.17	 Purchase	of	Goods,	Equipment,	and	Contractual	Services	from	other	

	 Governmental	Contracts	 42	

A‐1.18	 Conditions	and	Charges	for	District	Equipment	Services	 43	

A‐1.19	 Job	Descriptions	 44	

A‐1.20	 Legal	Defense	and	Indemnification																																																																																				45	

*				*				*	

Page 23



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	2	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

ST.	LUCIE	WEST	SERVICES	DISTRICT	GENERAL	AND	PROCEDURAL	RULES	

A‐1.01	 General	

(1) The	St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(the	“District”)	was	created	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	

Chapter	 190,	 Florida	 Statutes	 (1989)	 and	 was	 established	 to	 provide	 for	 the	 ownership,	 operation,	

maintenance,	 and	provision	of	various	 capital	 facilities	and	services	within	 its	 jurisdiction.	The	purpose	of	

these	rules	is	to	describe	the	general	operations	of	the	District.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011,	120.53(1)(a),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.011,	120.53(1)(a),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991	

*				*				*	

	

Page 24



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	3	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

A‐1.02	 Board	of	Supervisors;	Officers	and	Voting	

(1)	 Board	of	Supervisors.		The	Board	of	Supervisors	of	the	District	(the	“Board”)	shall	exercise	the	

powers	granted	 to	 the	District.	 	The	Board	 shall	 consist	 of	 five	members.	 	Members	of	 the	Board	must	be	

residents	of	the	District,	registered	voters,	and	citizens	of	the	United	States.	

(2)	 Term	 of	 Officers.	 	 Board	 members	 shall	 hold	 office	 pursuant	 to	 Section	 190.006,	 Florida	

Statutes.	 	If,	during	the	term	of	office	of	any	Board	member(s),	one	or	more	vacancies	occur,	the	remaining	

member(s)	of	the	Board	shall	fill	the	vacancies	by	appointment	for	the	remainder	of	the	unexpired	term(s).	

(3)	 Vacancies;	Quorum.		Three	members	of	the	Board	shall	constitute	a	quorum	for	the	purposes	

of	conducting	its	business	and	exercising	its	powers	and	for	all	other	purposes.	 	However,	 if	 three	or	more	

vacancies	occur	at	the	same	time,	a	quorum	is	not	necessary	to	fill	the	vacancies.		Action	taken	by	the	Board	

shall	 be	upon	a	 vote	 of	 the	majority	 of	 the	members	present,	 unless	 otherwise	provided	 in	 these	 rules	 or	

required	by	law.	

(4)	 Officers.		As	soon	as	practicable	after	each	election	or	appointment,	the	Board	shall	organize	

by	selecting	a	chairperson,	vice	chairperson,	secretary,	and	treasurer.	

(a)	 The	chairperson	must	be	a	member	of	the	Board.		If	the	chair	resigns	from	that	office	

or	ceases	to	be	a	member	of	the	Board,	the	Board	shall	select	a	chair	to	serve	the	remaining	portion	of	the	

term,	after	filling	the	board	vacancy.		The	chairperson	shall	be	authorized	to	sign	checks	and	warrants	for	the	

District,	 countersigned	by	 the	 treasurer	 or	 other	 persons	 authorized	by	 the	Board.	 	 The	 chairperson	 shall	

convene	 and	 conduct	 all	meetings	 of	 the	 Board.	 In	 the	 event	 the	 chairperson	 is	 unable	 to	 attend	 a	 given	

meeting,	the	vice	chairperson	(or	other	Board	member	if	the	vice	chairperson	is	unavailable)	shall	convene	

and	conduct	the	meeting.	

(b)	 The	vice	chairperson	shall	be	a	member	of	the	Board	and	shall	have	such	duties	and	

responsibilities	 as	 specifically	 designated	by	 the	Board	 from	 time	 to	 time.	 	 If	 the	 vice	 chairperson	 resigns	

from	that	office	or	ceases	to	be	a	member	of	the	Board,	the	Board	shall	select	a	vice	chairperson	to	serve	the	

remainder	of	the	term,	after	filling	the	Board	vacancy.	

Page 25



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	4	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(c)		 The	 secretary	 of	 the	 Board	 serves	 at	 the	 pleasure	 of	 the	 Board	 and	 need	 not	 be	 a	

member	of	the	Board.		The	secretary	shall	be	responsible	for	maintaining	the	minutes	of	Board	meetings	and	

may	have	other	duties	assigned	by	the	Board	from	time	to	time.		The	District	Manager	may	serve	a	secretary.	

(d)	 The	treasurer	need	not	be	a	member	of	the	Board	but	must	be	a	resident	of	Florida.		

The	treasurer	shall	perform	duties	described	in	Section	190.007(2)	and	(3),	Florida	Statutes,	as	well	as	those	

assigned	by	the	Board	from	time	to	time.		The	treasurer	shall	serve	at	the	pleasure	of	the	Board.	

(5)	 Committees.		The	Board	may	establish	committees	of	the	Board	by	formal	motion	referencing	

this	 rule,	 either	on	a	permanent	or	 temporary	basis,	 to	basis,	 to	perform	specifically	designated	 functions.		

Committees	may	include	individuals	who	are	not	members	of	the	Board.		Such	functions	may	include,	but	are	

not	limited	to,	contract	negotiations,	personnel	matters,	and	budget	preparation.	

(6)	 Record	Book.		The	Board	shall	keep	a	permanent	record	book	entitled	“Record	of	Proceedings	

of	the	St.	Lucie	West	Community	Development	District,”	in	which	shall	be	recorded	minutes	of	all	meetings,	

resolutions,	proceedings,	certificates,	bonds	and	corporate	acts.	

(7)	 Meetings.		The	Board	shall	establish	a	schedule	of	regular	meetings	and	may	also	meet	upon	

call	of	the	chairperson	or	three	Board	members.		Nothing	herein	shall	prevent	the	Board	from	holding	other	

meetings	as	 it	deems	necessary	or	 from	canceling	any	regularly	scheduled	meetings.	 	A	previously	noticed	

regular	meeting	may	be	canceled,	provided	that	notice	of	cancellation	shall	be	given	in	substantially	the	same	

manner	as	notice	for	the	meeting	or	in	such	other	manner	as	may	provide	substantially	equivalent	notice	of	

cancellation.		All	meetings	of	the	Board	shall	be	open	to	the	public	and	governed	by	the	provisions	of	Chapter	

286,	Florida	Statutes.	

(8)	 Voting	 Conflict	 of	 Interest.	 	 The	 intent	 of	 this	 section	 is	 to	 comply	with	 Section	 112.3143,	

Florida	Statutes,	and	to	ensure	the	proper	disclosure	of	conflicts	of	 interests	on	matters	coming	before	the	

Board	for	a	vote.	

When	 a	 Board	member	 knows	 that	 he/she	 has	 a	 voting	 conflict	 of	 interest	 on	 a	matter	 coming	

before	the	Board,	he/she	should	notify	the	Board’s	secretary	prior	to	participating	in	any	discussion	with	the	

Board	 on	 the	 matter.	 	 The	 member	 shall	 publicly	 announce	 the	 conflict	 of	 interest	 at	 the	 meeting.	 	 This	

Page 26



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	5	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

announcement	shall	appear	in	the	minutes.	 	The	member	shall	not	vote.	 	The	Board	member	shall	prepare	

and	sign	a	memorandum	of	voting	conflict	within	15	days	after	the	vote	occurs	which	shall	then	be	filed	by	

the	Board’s	secretary.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011(5),		120.53,	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §	190.006(1),	190.006(4),	190.006(5),	190.006(6),	190.006(7),	190.006(9),	

190.007,	112.3143,	120.53(1)(d),	112.3143(3)(a),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

Page 27



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	6	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

A‐1.03	 District	Manager	

(1)	 Terms	of	 Service.	 	 The	Board	 shall	 employ	 and	 fix	 the	 compensation	of	 a	District	Manager.		

The	District	Manager	shall	serve	at	the	pleasure	of	the	Board.	

(2)	 Responsibilities.		The	District	Manager	shall	have	charge	and	supervision	of	the	works	of	the	

District	and	shall	be	responsible	for	preserving	and	maintaining	any	improvement	or	facility	constructed	or	

erected	 pursuant	 to	 actions	 by	 the	 Board,	 for	 maintaining	 and	 operating	 the	 equipment	 owned	 by	 the	

District,	and	for	performing	such	other	duties	as	may	be	prescribed	by	the	Board.		The	District	Manager	may	

act	as	secretary	of	the	Board.	

(3)	 Hiring.		The	District	Manager	may	hire	or	otherwise	employ	and	terminate	the	employment	of	

such	other	persons,	 including,	without	 limitation,	professional,	supervisory,	and	clerical	employees,	as	may	

be	necessary	and	authorized	by	 the	Board.	 	Compensation	and	other	conditions	of	employment	of	officers	

and	employees	of	the	District	shall	be	as	provided	by	the	Board.	

(4)	 Purchasing.		

(a)	 Except	 in	 the	 case	 of	 an	Emergency	 Purchase	 as	 defined	 in	 Section	A‐1.11(2)(g),	 A‐

1.12(2)(e),	 or	A‐1.13(2)(e)	 of	 these	 policies,	 the	District	Manager	may	 enter	 into	 contracts	 and	undertake	

purchases	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 District	 only	 when	 (i)	 the	 amount	 to	 be	 paid	 by	 the	 District	 does	 not	 exceed	

$25,000,	and	(ii)	the	contract,	purchase,	or	project	(A)	is	specified	within	the	approved	budget	of	the	District	

and	(B)	does	not	require	a	budget	amendment.		All	other	contracts	and	purchases	shall	require	the	approval	

of	the	Board	prior	to	becoming	effective.	

(b)	 If	an	Emergency	Purchase	as	defined	in	Section	A‐1.10(2)(g),	Section	A‐1.11(2)(g),	A‐

1.12(2)(e),	or	A‐1.13(2)(e)	of	these	policies	is	made	by	the	District	Manager	to	protect	the	immediate	health,	

safety,	 and	welfare	of	 the	District	 and	 such	purchase	 exceeds	 the	 authority	prescribed	herein,	 the	District	

Manager	shall	immediately	notify	the	Board	Chairman	and	Vice‐Chairman	and	shall	present	such	purchase	to	

the	Board	for	ratification	at	the	next	following	meeting,	together	with	sufficient	information	to	demonstrate	

the	necessity	for	immediate	action.	No	Emergency	Purchase	in	excess	of	$50,000	shall	be	made	by	the	District	

Manager	without	prior	authorization	of	the	Board.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011,	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §	190.007(1),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007	

*				*				*	

	

	

Page 28



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	7	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

A‐1.04		 Public	Information	and	Inspection	of	Records	

(1) Public	 Records.	 All	 District	 public	 records	 within	 the	 meaning	 of	 Chapter	 119,	 Florida	

Statutes,	 and	 not	 otherwise	 restricted	 by	 law,	 including	 the	 “Record	 of	 Proceedings	 of	 the	 St.	 Lucie	West	

Community	Development	District,”	may	be	copied	or	inspected	at	the	District	Office	at	450	S.W.	Utility	Drive,	

Port	St.	Lucie,	FL	34986,	during	regular	business	hours.	

(2) Inspection	 and	 Copies.	 Copies	 of	 public	 records	 shall	 be	 made	 available	 to	 the	 requesting	

person	at	a	charge	of	$.15	per	page	for	one‐sided	copies	and	$.20	per	page	for	two‐sided	copies	if	not	more	

than	8‐1/2	by	14	 inches,	 and	 for	 copies	 in	 excess	 of	 that	 size	 at	 a	 charge	not	 to	 exceed	 the	 actual	 cost	 of	

reproduction.	Certified	copies	of	public	records	shall	be	made	available	at	a	charge	of	$1.00	per	page.	If	the	

nature	 or	 volume	 of	 public	 records	 requested	 to	 be	 inspected,	 examined	 or	 copied	 is	 such	 as	 to	 require	

extensive	use	of	 information	technology	resources	or	extensive	clerical	or	supervisory	assistance,	a	special	

service	charge,	which	shall	be	reasonable	and	based	on	the	actual	cost	incurred,	may	be	charged	in	addition	

to	the	actual	cost	of	duplication.	For	purposes	of	these	Rules,	any	clerical	or	supervisory	assistance	or	use	of	

information	technology	resources	requiring	longer	than	fifteen	(15)	minutes	shall	be	considered	extensive.	

The	cost	of	clerical	or	supervisory	time	shall	be	computed	to	the	nearest	one‐sixth	of	an	hour,	and	the	charge	

will	be	based	on	the	current	hourly	rate	of	pay	plus	benefits.	

(3) Deposit	of	Estimated	Fees.	If	extensive	clerical	or	supervisory	assistance	or	use	of	information	

technology	resources	will	be	required	to	comply	with	a	public	records	request,	 the	District	shall	notify	the	

requester	of	the	estimated	cost	of	inspection	or	duplication	of	any	record.	A	deposit	of	the	estimated	fee	will	

be	due	prior	 to	 inspection	or	 copying.	Of	 the	monies	deposited	with	 the	District	 for	 fulfillment	of	 a	public	

records	 request,	 those	 in	 excess	 of	 actual	 costs	 incurred	 to	 fulfill	 the	 request	 will	 be	 refunded	 to	 the	

requester;	or,	 in	 the	alternative,	 the	 requester	 shall	be	 required	 to	 remit	 additional	monies	 to	pay	 for	any	

costs	 in	 excess	 of	 the	 monies	 deposited	 with	 the	 District.	 In	 the	 event	 that	 the	 requester	 fails	 to	 remit	

additional	monies	 to	 cover	 costs	 in	 excess	 of	 the	 deposit,	 the	 District	may	withhold	 releasing	 any	 public	

records	produced	pursuant	to	the	request	until	those	amounts	are	paid	in	full.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §	190.006(7),	119.07(1)(a),	119.07(1)(b),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	December	15,	2009		

*				*				*	

	

	

Page 29



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	8	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

A‐1.05		 Meetings	and	Workshops	

(1) Notice.	 	Except	 in	emergencies,	or	as	otherwise	provided	 in	 these	rules,	at	 least	 seven	days	

public	 notice	 shall	 be	 given	 of	 any	 meeting	 or	 workshop	 of	 the	 Board.	 Public	 notice	 shall	 be	 given	 by	

publication	in	a	newspaper	of	general	circulation	in	the	District	and	shall	state:	

(a) The	date,	time,	and	place	of	the	meeting	or	workshop;	

(b) A	brief	description	of	the	nature,	subjects	and	purposes	of	the	meeting	or	workshop;	

(c) The	address	where	persons	may	obtain	a	copy	of	the	agenda.	

(d) If	 final	 District	 action	will	 take	 place	 at	 the	meeting,	 the	 notice	 shall	 state	 that	 if	 a	

person	decides	to	seek	review	of	any	official	decision	made	at	the	Board	meeting,	a	record	of	the	proceedings	

will	 be	 required	 and	 the	 person	 intending	 to	 appeal	 will	 need	 to	 ensure	 that	 a	 verbatim	 record	 of	 the	

proceedings	is	made,	including	the	testimony	and	evidence	necessary	for	the	appeal.	

(2) Agenda.	 The	District	Manager,	 under	 the	 supervision	 of	 the	 chairperson	 or	 those	members	

calling	for	a	Board	meeting,	shall	prepare	a	notice	of	the	meeting	or	workshop	and	an	agenda.	The	notice	and	

agenda	 shall	 be	 available	 to	 the	 public	 at	 least	 seven	 days	 before	 the	meeting	 or	 workshop	 except	 in	 an	

emergency.	The	agenda	may	be	changes	before	or	at	the	meeting	or	workshop	for	good	cause	stated	by	the	

presiding	officer	and	recorded	n	the	minutes	of	the	meeting.	

(3) Agenda	 Format.	 The	 District	 may	 use	 the	 following	 format	 in	 preparing	 its	 agenda	 for	 its	

regular	meeting:	

1. Roll	Call	

2. Review	of	Minutes	

3. Special	Advertised	Public	Hearings	

4. Audience	Questions	and	Comments	

5. Specific	Items	of	Old	Business	

6. Committee	Reports	

a. Finance	Committee	

Page 30



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	9	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

b. Construction	Committee	

c. Other	Committees	

7. Attorney’s	Report	

8. Manager’s	Report	

9. Supervisor’s	Requests	and	Comments	

10. Review	of	Invoices	and	Funding	Requests	

11. Specific	Items	of	New	Business	

12. Adjournment	

(4) Minutes.	The	 secretary	 shall	be	 responsible	 for	keeping	 the	minutes	of	 each	meeting	of	 the	

Board.		Minutes	shall	be	corrected	and	approved	by	the	Board	at	a	subsequent	meeting.	

(5) Receipt	of	Notice.		Persons	wishing	to	receive,	by	mail,	notices	or	agendas	of	meetings,	may	so	

advise	the	District	Manager	or	secretary	at	the	Board’s	office.	Such	persons	shall	furnish	a	mailing	address	in	

writing	and	may	be	required	to	pay	the	cost	of	the	copying	and	mailing.	

(6) Emergency	 Meeting.	 The	 chairperson	 or	 the	 vice‐chairperson	 if	 the	 chairperson	 is	

unavailable,	may	convene	an	emergency	meeting	of	the	Board	without	first	having	complied	with	subsection	

(1),	 (2),	 (3),	 and	 (5),	 to	 act	 on	 emergency	 matters	 that	 may	 affect	 the	 public	 health,	 safety,	 or	 welfare.	

Whenever	 possible,	 the	 chairperson	 shall	 make	 reasonable	 efforts	 to	 notify	 all	 Board	 members	 of	 an	

emergency	meeting	 24	 hours	 in	 advance.	 Reasonable	 efforts	may	 include	 telephone	 notification.	 After	 an	

emergency	meeting,	 the	Board	shall	publish	 in	a	newspaper	of	general	circulation	 in	 the	District,	 the	 time,	

date,	 and	 place	 of	 the	 emergency	meeting,	 the	 reasons	why	 the	 emergency	meeting	was	 necessary,	 and	 a	

description	 of	 the	 action	 taken.	Whenever	 an	 emergency	 meeting	 is	 called,	 the	 District	 Manager	 shall	 be	

responsible	for	notifying	at	least	one	major	newspaper	of	general	circulation	in	the	District.	Actions	taken	at	

an	emergency	may	be	ratified	by	the	Board	at	a	regularly	noticed	meeting	subsequently	held.	

(7) Public	 Comment.	 The	 Board	 shall	 set	 aside	 a	 reasonable	 amount	 of	 time	 at	 each	 regular	

meeting	 for	 public	 comment.	 Such	 time	 for	 audience	 comment	 shall	 be	 identified	 in	 the	 agenda.	 Persons	

wishing	 to	 address	 the	 Board	 are	 required	 to	 notify	 the	 secretary	 of	 the	 Board	 prior	 to	 the	 “audience	

Page 31



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	10	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

comment”	section	on	the	agenda.	In	its	discretion,	the	Board	may	limit	the	length	of	any	one	speaker	in	the	

interest	of	the	time	or	fairness	to	other	speakers.	

(8) Budget	Hearing.	Notice	of	hearing	on	the	annual	budget	shall	be	in	accordance	with	Section	

190.008,	Florida	Statutes.	

(9) Communications	 Media	 Technology.	 A	 meeting	 of	 the	 Board	 may	 be	 conducted	 by	 or	 in	

conjunction	with	Communications	Media	Technology	(CMT),	including	teleconferences	or	video	conferences.	

All	 evidence,	 testimony	 and	 argument	 presented	 shall	 be	 afforded	 equal	 consideration,	 regardless	 of	 the	

method	of	communication.	

(10) Continuances.	Any	meeting	of	the	Board	or	any	item	or	matter	included	on	the	agenda	for	a	

meeting	may	be	continued	without	re‐notice	or	re‐advertising	provided	that	the	continuance	is	to	a	specified	

date,	time	and	location	publicly	announced	at	the	Board	meeting	where	the	item	or	matter	was	included	on	

the	agenda.	

(a) Definitions.	

1. “Access	point”	means	a	designated	place	where	a	person	interested	in	attending	a	

CMT	meeting	may	go	for	purposes	of	attending	such	meeting.	

2. “Attend”	means	having	access	to	the	communications	media	technology	network	

being	used	to	conduct	a	meeting,	or	being	used	to	take	evidence,	testimony	or	argument	relevant	in	any	issue	

being	considered	at	a	meeting.	

3. “CMT	meeting”	means	a	meeting	that	is	conducted	by	means	of	or	in	conjunction	

with	communications	media	technology.	

4. “Communications	media	technology”	means	the	electronic	transmission	of	printed	

matter,	 audio,	 full‐motion	 video,	 freeze	 frame	 video,	 compressed	 video,	 and	 digital	 video	 by	 any	method	

available.	

5. “In	conjunction	with	communications	media	 technology”	means	that	CMT	access	

is	being	provided	to	a	meeting	otherwise	being	held	with	the	collective,	physical	presence	of	the	members	of	

the	Board	in	once	place.	

Page 32



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	11	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

6. “By	means	 of	 communication	media	 technology”	means	 that	 a	meeting	 is	 being	

conducted	 entirely	 by	 means	 of	 communications	 media	 technology	 and	 that	 the	 members	 of	 the	 Board	

conducting	such	meeting	may	not	be	collectively,	physically	together	in	one	place.	

(b) Nothing	in	this	rule	shall	be	construed	to	permit	the	District	to	conduct	any	meeting	

otherwise	subject	to	the	provisions	of	Section	286.011,	Florida	Statutes,	by	means	of	communications	media	

technology	without	making	provision	for	the	attendance	at	that	meeting	or	workshop	of	any	member	of	the	

public	who	desires	to	attend.	

(c) The	 District	may	 not	 limit	 the	 point	 of	 access	 provided	 to	 the	 public	 to	 places	 not	

normally	 open	 to	 the	 public.	 The	 District	 shall	 provide	 at	 least	 one	 access	 point	 in	 a	 location	 which	 is	

ordinarily	open	to	the	public.	Any	official	action	taken	at	a	CMT	meeting	to	which	at	least	one	access	point	is	

not	provided	shall	be	void	and	of	no	effect	as	being	violative	of	the	public’s	right	of	access.	

(d) No	 meeting	 shall	 be	 conducted	 entirely	 by	 means	 of	 communications	 media	

technology	if	the	available	technology	is	insufficient	to	permit	all	interested	persons	to	attend.	If,	during	the	

course	 of	 a	 CMT	 meeting,	 technical	 problems	 develop	 with	 the	 communications	 network	 that	 prevent	

interested	persons	 from	attending,	 the	District	 shall	 terminate	 the	meeting	until	 such	problems	have	been	

corrected.	

(e) Notice	of	a	CMT	meeting	shall	be	in	the	same	manner	as	a	meeting	without	CMT.	The	

notice	shall	plainly	state	that	such	a	meeting	is	to	be	conducted	by	means	of	or	in	conjunction	with	CMT	and	

identify	the	type	of	CMT	to	be	used.	The	notice	shall	also	describe	how	interested	persons	may	attend,	and	

include	the	address	or	addresses	of	all	access	points.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 190.011(5),	190.011(15),	120.53(1)(d)	

Law	Implemented			 190.007(1),	190.008,	120.53(1)(d),	286.0105,	120.54(1)	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991	

*				*				*	

	

Page 33



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	12	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.06	 Rulemaking	Proceedings	

(1) Commencement	of	Proceedings.	 	 Proceedings	held	 for	 adoption,	 amendment,	 or	 repeal	of	 a	

District	rule	shall	be	conducted	according	to	the	applicable	provisions	of	Chapter	120,	Florida	Statutes,	and	

these	rules.	Rulemaking	proceedings	shall	be	deemed	to	have	been	initiated	upon	publication	of	notice	by	the	

District.	

(2) Notice	of	Proceedings	and	Proposed	Rules.	Except	in	the	case	of	emergency	rules,	notice	of	its	

intention	to	adopt,	amend,	or	repeal	a	rule	setting	rates,	 fees,	rentals,	or	other	charges	pursuant	to	Section	

190.035,	Florida	Statutes,	shall	be	given	by	the	District	by	publication	in	a	newspaper	of	general	circulation	

in	 the	 District	 not	 less	 than	 10	 days	 prior	 to	 the	 intended	 action.	 Upon	 the	 publication	 of	 notice	 of	 its	

intention	to	adopt,	amend,	or	repeal	a	rule,	a	draft	of	the	proposed	rules	shall	be	made	available	to	the	public.	

(3) Petitions	 to	 Initiate	 Rulemaking.	 All	 petitions	 for	 the	 initiation	 of	 rulemaking	 proceedings	

pursuant	to	Section	120.54(5).,	Florida	Statutes,	must	contain	the	name	and	address	of	the	Petitioner,	specific	

reason	 for	adoption,	amendment,	or	repeal,	specific	action	requested,	 the	date	submitted,	and	shall	specify	

the	text	of	the	proposed	rule.	The	Board	shall	then	act	on	the	petition	in	accordance	with	Section	120.54(5),	

Florida	 Statutes,	 and	 Sections	 28‐3.011	 and	 3.013,	 Florida	 Administrative	 Code,	 except	 that	 copies	 of	 the	

petition	shall	not	be	sent	to	the	Administrative	Procedures	Committee.	

(4) Rulemaking	 Materials.	 After	 the	 publication	 of	 the	 notice	 initiating	 rulemaking,	 the,	 Board	

shall	make	available	for	public	inspection	and	shall	provide,	upon	request	and	payment	of	cost	of	copies,	the	

following	materials:	

(a) The	text	of	the	proposed	rule,	or	any	amendment	or	repeal	of	any	existing	rules;	

(b) A	written	statement	justifying	the	proposed	rule;	

(c) A	copy	of	the	economic	impact	statement	required	by	Section	120.54;	and	

(d) The	published	notice.	

(5) Rulemaking	Proceedings	–	No	Hearing.	When	no	hearing	is	requested	and	the	Board	chooses	

not	to	initiate	a	hearing	on	its	own,	or	if	the	rule	relates	exclusively	to	organization,	practice	or	procedure,	

the	Board	may	direct	the	proposed	rule	be	filed	with	the	District	Office	no	less	than	28	days	following	notice.	

Page 34



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	13	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

Such	 direction	 may	 be	 given	 by	 the	 Board	 either	 before	 initiating	 the	 rule‐adoption	 process	 or	 after	 the	

expiration	of	the	21	days	during	which	affected	persons	may	request	a	hearing.	

(6) Rulemaking	 Proceedings	 –	 Hearing.	 If	 the	 proposed	 rule	 does	 not	 relate	 exclusively	 to	

organization,	 practice	 or	 procedure,	 the	 District	 shall	 provide,	 upon	 request,	 a	 public	 hearing	 for	 the	

presentation	 of	 evidence,	 argument	 and	 oral	 statements,	within	 the	 reasonable	 conditions	 and	 limitations	

imposed	by	 the	District	 to	 avoid	duplication,	 irrelevant	 comments,	 unnecessary	delay	or	disruption	of	 the	

proceedings.	Any	affected	person	may	request	a	hearing	within	21	days	after	the	date	of	publication	of	the	

notice.	 The	 public	 hearings	 shall	 be	 conducted	 according	 to	 the	 procedure	 in	 Section	 28‐3.031,	 Florida	

Administrative	Code.	The	Board,	any	member	thereof,	or	any	person	designated	by	the	Board,	including	but	

not	limited	to	the	District	Manager	or	District	Counsel,	may	preside	at	the	hearing.	

(7) Emergency	Rule	Adoption.	The	Board	may	adopt	an	emergency	rule	if	it	finds	that	immediate	

danger	to	the	public	health,	safety,	or	welfare	exists	which	requires	immediate	action.	Prior	to	the	adoption	

of	an	emergency	rule,	 the	District	Manager	shall	make	reasonable	efforts	 to	notify	a	newspaper	of	general	

circulation	in	the	District.	Notice	of	emergency	rules	shall	be	published	as	soon	as	practical	in	a	newspaper	of	

general	circulation	in	the	District.	The	District	may	use	any	procedure	which	is	fair	under	the	circumstances	

in	the	adoption	of	an	emergency	rule	as	long	as	it	protects	the	public	interest	and	otherwise	complies	with	

applicable	statutory	provisions.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011(5),	190.011(15),	120.53(1),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §120.54,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

Page 35



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	14	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.07	 Declaratory	Statements	

(1) Declaratory	Statements.		Any	substantially	affected	person	may	seek	a	declaratory	statement	

regarding	an	agency’s	opinion	as	to	the	applicability	of	a	statutory	provision,	or	of	any	rule	or	order	of	the	

agency,	as	it	applies	to	the	petitioner’s	particular	set	of	circumstances.	

(2) Disposition	of	Petition.	The	petition	may	be	placed	on	the	agenda	of	the	next	Board	meeting	

for	which	 the	agenda	has	not	been	 finalized.	The	Board,	 in	 its	discretion,	may	consider	any	oral	 testimony	

presented	at	the	Board	meeting.	The	Board	shall	issue	an	order	within	45	days	following	consideration	of	the	

petition.	The	order	shall	only	be	applicable	to	the	petitioner.	The	order	shall	be	final	agency	action.		

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011(5),	190.011(15),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §	120.565,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	December	15	2009	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 36



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	15	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.08	 Decisions	Determining	Substantial	Interests	

(1) Conduct	 of	 Proceedings.	 	 A	 proceeding	 may	 be	 held	 by	 the	 District	 upon	 written	 request	

submitted	by	a	substantially	affected	person	within	14	days	after	written	notice	of	District	action	or	receipt	

of	written	notice	of	intent	to	render	a	decision.	The	notice	shall	state	the	time	limit	for	requesting	a	hearing	

and	 shall	 reference	 the	 District’s	 procedural	 rules.	 If	 a	 hearing	 is	 held,	 the	 chairperson	 shall	 designate	

him/herself,	or	any	member	of	the	Board,	District	Manager,	District	Counsel,	or	other	person	to	conduct	the	

hearing.	

The	person	conducting	the	hearing	may:	

1. Administer	oaths	and	affirmations;	

2. Rule	upon	offers	of	proof	and	receive	relevant	evidence;	

3. Regulate	the	course	of	the	hearing,	including	any	prehearing	matters;	

4. Enter	orders;	

5. Make	or	receive	offers	of	settlement,	stipulation,	and	adjustment.	

(a) The	 person	 conducting	 the	 hearing	 shall,	 within	 thirty	 (30)	 days	 after	 the	 hearing	 or	

receipt	of	the	hearing	transcript,	whichever	is	later,	file	a	recommended	order	which	shall	include	a	caption,	

time	and	place	of	hearing,	appearances	entered	at	the	hearing,	statement	of	the	issues,	 findings	of	 fact	and	

conclusions	of	law,	separately	stated,	and	recommendation	for	final	District	action.	

(b) The	District	shall	issue	a	final	order	within	45	days:	

1. After	the	hearing	is	concluded,	if	conducted	by	the	Board;	

2. After	a	recommended	order	is	submitted	to	the	Board	and	mailed	to	all	parties,	if	the	

hearing	is	conducted	by	persons	other	than	the	Board;	or	

3. After	 the	 Board	 has	 received	 the	written	 and	 oral	material	 it	 has	 authorized	 to	 be	

submitted,	if	there	has	been	no	hearing.	

(2) Eminent	 Domain.	 After	 determining	 the	 need	 to	 exercise	 the	 power	 of	 eminent	 domain	

pursuant	to	Subsection	190.11(11),	Florida	Statutes,	the	District	shall	follow	those	procedures	prescribed	in	

Chapter	73	and	74,	Florida	Statutes.	Prior	to	exercising	the	power	of	eminent	domain,	the	District	shall:	 	

Page 37



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	16	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(a) Adopt	a	resolution	identifying	the	property	to	be	taken;	

(b) If	the	property	is	beyond	the	boundaries	of	the	District,	obtain	approval	by	resolution	of	

the	governing	body	of	the	county	it	taking	will	occur	in	an	unincorporated	area,	or	of	the	municipality	if	the	

taking	will	occur	within	the	municipality.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §	190.011(5),	190.011(15),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.011(11),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 38



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	17	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.09	 Procedure	for	Procuring	Professional	Services;	Protests	

(1) Acquiring	 Services	 of	 Certain	 Consultants.	 The	 District	 will	 comply	 with	 the	 Consultants’	

Competitive	Negotiations	Act,	Section	287.055,	Florida	Statutes,	when	selecting	firms	to	provide	professional	

services	and	in	negotiating	contracts	for	professional	services	within	the	scope	of	the	practice	of	architecture,	

professional	 engineering,	 landscape	 architecture,	 or	 registered	 land	 surveying	 for	 any	 project	 the	 basic	

construction	cost	of	which	is	estimated	to	exceed	the	threshold	amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	

Statutes,	 for	 category	 five	 ($250,000)	 or	 for	 a	 planning	 or	 study	 activity	 when	 the	 fee	 for	 professional	

services	 exceeds	 the	 threshold	 amount	 provided	 for	 category	 two	 ($25,000),	 as	 such	 categories	 may	 be	

amended	from	time	to	time.	

(2) Design	 –	 Build	 Contracts.	 The	 District	 will	 comply	 with	 the	 Consultants’	 Competitive	

Negotiations	 Act,	 Section	 287.055(9),	 Florida	 Statutes,	 on	 each	 occasion	 when	 the	 District	 requires	

professional	services	under	a	design‐build	contract,	as	defined	in	Section	287.055(2)(i),	Florida	Statutes.	

(3) Acquiring	Financial	Audit	Services.	The	District	will	comply	with	the	selection	procedures	set	

forth	in	Section	11.45,	Florida	Statutes,	when	selecting	firms	to	provide	financial	audit	services.	

(4) Other	 Professional	 Services.	 On	 each	 occasion	 that	 the	 District	 requires	 the	 services	 of	 a	

professional	 not	 specified	 in	 subsection	 (1),	 (2),	 or	 (3)	 above,	 including	 but	 not	 limited	 to	 an	 attorney,	

financial	advisor,	or	other	consultant,	the	District	shall	use	such	selection	procedures	as	appropriate	in	light	

of	all	the	circumstances.	

(5) Protests.	 The	 District	 will	 comply	 with	 the	 requirements	 of	 Section	 120.57(3),	 Florida	

Statutes,	 and	Chapter	 28‐110	of	 the	 Florida	Administrative	 Code	 regarding	 any	 and	 all	 protests	 that	 arise	

from	the	procurement	of	professional	services	under	this	section	to	the	extent	such	provisions	apply.		

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §11.45,	120.57(3)	190.011(3)	&	(5),	190.033,	287.055,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007	

*				*				*	

Page 39



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	18	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.10	 Procedure	for	Purchasing	Contractual	Services	

(1) Scope.		

(a) All	purchases	for	contractual	services	that	do	not	exceed	$2,500	shall	be	made	using	Good	

Purchasing	Practices,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(i)	of	this	rule.	

(b) Unless	otherwise	exempt,	all	purchases	for	contractual	services	that	exceed	$2,500	but	do	

not	exceed	the	threshold	amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	for	category	four	($150,000),	

as	 such	 category	 may	 be	 amended	 from	 time	 to	 time,	 shall	 be	 made	 using	 Quotations,	 as	 defined	 in	

Subsection	(2)(j)	of	this	rule.	

(c) Unless	otherwise	exempt,	all	purchases	for	contractual	services	that	exceed	the	threshold	

amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	for	category	four,	as	such	category	may	be	amended	

from	time	to	time,	shall	be	made	by	Competitive	Procedure,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(k)	of	this	rule,	to	the	

maximum	extent	practicable.	

(d) If	state	or	federal	law	prescribes	with	whom	the	District	must	contract,	or	establishes	the	

rate	of	payment,	then	these	rules	shall	not	apply.	

(e) A	contract	involving	both	goods,	supplies,	and	materials,	and	contractual	services	may,	in	

the	discretion	of	the	Board,	be	treated	as	a	contract	for	goods,	supplies,	and	materials.	

(f) For	good	cause	shown,	the	Board	may	waive	the	requirements	of	this	Section	when	such	

action	is	consistent	with	the	overall	objectives	of	the	District.	

(2) Definitions.	For	this	Section:	

(a) “Contractual	services”	means	the	rendering	by	a	consultant	of	planning	and	professional	

services	performed	by	persons	required	by	the	state	to	hold	a	professional	license.	Contractual	services	do	

not	 include	 legal	 (including	 attorneys,	 paralegals,	 court	 reporters,	 and	 expert	 witnesses	 including	

appraisers),	artistic,	auditing,	health,	academic	program	services,	or	other	professional	services	governed	by	

Section	A‐1.09	of	these	policies.	Contractual	services	do	not	include	the	extension	of	an	existing	contract	for	

services	if	such	extension	is	provided	for	in	the	contract	terms.	

Page 40



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	19	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(b) “Invitation	to	Bid”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	bids	with	the	title,	date	and	hour	of	the	public	

bid	 opening	 designated	 specifically.	 It	 includes	 a	 description	 of	 the	 services	 sought,	 applicable	 terms	 and	

conditions,	evaluation	criteria,	including	but	not	limited	to	price,	and	provides	for	a	manual	signature	of	an	

authorized	representative.	

(c) “Request	for	Proposal”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	proposals	with	the	title,	date,	and	hour	

of	 the	 public	 opening	 designated	 and	 requiring	 the	 manual	 signature	 of	 an	 authorized	 representative.	 It	

provides	a	statement	for	services	sought,	applicable	terms	and	conditions,	and	evaluating	criteria,	including	

but	not	limited	to	price.	

(d) “Responsive	 bid/proposal”	 means,	 a	 bid	 or	 proposal	 which	 conforms	 in	 all	 material	

respect	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	and	these	rules,	and	whose	cost	components	are	appropriately	balance.	

A	 bid/proposal	 is	 not	 responsive	 if	 the	 person	 or	 firm	 submitting	 the	 bid	 fails	 to	 meet	 any	 requirement	

relating	to	the	qualifications,	financial	stability,	or	licensing	of	the	bidder.	

(e) “Lowest	and	best	bid”	means,	in	the	sole	discretion	of	the	Board,	the	bid	(i)	submitted	by	a	

person	or	firm	capable	and	qualified	in	all	respects	to	perform	fully	the	contract	requirements	and	with	the	

integrity	 and	 reliability	 to	 assure	 good	 faith	 performance,	 (ii)	 is	 responsive	 to	 the	 invitation	 to	 bid	 as	

determined	by	the	Board,	and	(iii)	is	the	lowest	cost	to	the	District.	Minor	variations	in	the	bid	may	be	waived	

by	 the	Board.	Mistakes	 in	arithmetic	extension	of	pricing	may	be	corrected	by	 the	Board.	Bids	may	not	be	

modified	after	opening.	

(f) “Proposal	most	advantageous	to	 the	District”	means,	 in	 the	sole	discretion	of	 the	Board,	

the	 proposal	 (i)	 submitted	 by	 a	 person	 of	 firm	 capable	 and	 qualified	 in	 all	 respects	 to	 perform	 fully	 the	

contract	requirements	and	with	the	integrity	and	reliability	to	assure	good	faith	performance,	(ii)	that	is	the	

most	responsive	to	the	request	and	proposal	as	determined	by	the	Board,	and	(iii)	is	for	a	cost	to	the	District	

deemed	reasonable	by	the	Board.	Minor	variations	in	the	proposal	may	be	waived	by	the	Board.	Mistakes	in	

arithmetic	extension	of	pricing	may	be	corrected	by	the	Board.	Proposals	may	not	be	modified	after	opening.	

To	 assure	 full	 understanding	 of	 the	 responsiveness	 to	 the	 solicitation	 requirements,	 discussions	 may	 be	

Page 41



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	20	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

conducted	 with	 qualified	 offerors.	 The	 offerors	 shall	 be	 accorded	 fair	 and	 equal	 treatment	 prior	 to	 the	

submittal	date	with	respect	to	any	opportunity	for	discussion	and	revision	of	proposals.	

(g) “Emergency	 purchase”	means	 a	 purchase	 necessitated	 by	 a	 sudden	 unexpected	 turn	 of	

events	(e.g.,	acts	of	God,	riot,	 fires,	 floods,	hurricanes,	accidents,	or	any	circumstances	or	cause	beyond	the	

control	of	the	Board	in	the	normal	conduct	of	its	business),	where	the	Board	finds	that	the	delay	incident	to	

competitive	bidding	would	be	detrimental	to	the	interests	of	the	District.	

(h) “A	continuing	contract”	 is	a	contract	 for	contractual	services	entered	 into	 in	accordance	

with	 all	 the	 procedures	 of	 this	 rule	 between	 the	 District	 and	 a	 firm	 or	 individual,	 whereby	 the	 firm	 or	

individual	 provides	 contractual	 services	 to	 the	 District	 for	 work	 of	 a	 specified	 nature	 as	 outlines	 in	 the	

contract	required	by	the	District,	with	no	time	limitation,	except	that	the	contract	shall	provide	a	termination	

clause.	

(i) “Good	 Purchasing	 Practices”	 shall	 include	 but	 are	 not	 limited	 to	 the	 receipt	 of	 written	

quotations,	or	written	records	of	telephone	quotations.	

(j) “Quotations”	 shall	mean	written	 quotations,	written	 records	 of	 telephone	 or	 other	 oral	

quotations	(including	the	name	and	address	of	each	respondent	and	the	amount	quoted),	or	informal	bids	to	

be	opened	upon	receipt.	 If	 the	District	 receives	 less	 than	 three	(3)	Quotations,	District	staff	 shall	 include	a	

statement	explaining	why	additional	quotes	were	not	received.	

(k) “Competitive	Procedure”	shall	mean	the	procedure	set	forth	in	Subsection	(3)	of	this	rule.	

(3) Procedure.	 When	 a	 purchase	 of	 contractual	 services	 is	 within	 the	 scope	 of	 this	 rule,	 the	

following	procedures	shall	be	followed:	

(a) The	Board	shall	cause	to	be	prepared	a	notice	of	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal,	

as	appropriate.	

(b) Notice	of	 invitation	 to	bid	or	 request	 for	proposal	 shall	be	 advertised	at	 least	once	 in	 a	

newspaper	of	general	circulation	 in	 the	District	or	on	 the	District’s	website.	The	notice	shall	allow	at	 least	

seven	 (7)	 days	 for	 submittal	 of	 bids	 or	 proposals	 unless	 the	 Board,	 for	 good	 cause,	 determines	 a	 shorter	

period	of	time	is	appropriate.	

Page 42



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	21	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(c) The	District	may	maintain	a	list	of	persons	interested	in	receiving	notices	of	invitations	to	

bid	or	requests	for	proposals.	Persons	who	provide	their	name	and	address	to	the	District	office	for	inclusion	

on	the	list	shall	receive	notices	by	mail.	

(d) Bids	shall	be	opened	at	the	time	and	place	noted	on	the	invitation	to	bid	and	request	for	

proposal.	Bids	and	proposals	shall	be	evaluated	in	accordance	with	the	invitation	or	request	and	these	rules.	

(e) If	only	one	response	to	an	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	is	received,	the	District	

may	proceed	with	procurement	for	contractual	services.	If	no	response	to	an	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	

proposal	is	received,	the	District	may	take	whatever	steps	are	reasonably	necessary	in	order	to	proceed	with	

the	procurement	of	contractual	services.	

(f) The	Board	has	the	right	to	reject	any	or	all	bids	or	proposals	and	such	reservation	shall	be	

included	in	all	solicitation	and	advertisements.	In	the	event	the	bids	exceed	the	amount	of	funds	available	to	

or	allocated	by	the	District	for	this	purchase,	the	bids	may	be	rejected.	Bidders	not	receiving	a	contract	award	

shall	not	be	entitled	to	recover	any	costs	of	bid	preparation	or	submittal	from	the	District.	

(g) The	lowest	and	best	bid	or	the	proposal	most	advantageous	to	the	District,	as	appropriate,	

shall	 be	 accepted.	 The	 Board	 may	 require	 bidders	 to	 furnish	 performance	 and/or	 other	 bonds	 with	

responsible	surety	to	be	approved	by	the	Board.	

(4) Notice.	Notice	of	award	or	 intent	 to	award	a	contract,	 including	 the	rejection	of	some	or	all	

bids,	shall	be	provided	in	writing	to	all	bidders	by	United	States	Mail	or	by	hand	delivery,	and	by	posting	same	

in	the	District	office	for	seven	(7)	days.	

(5) Contract	Renewal.	Renewal	of	a	contract	for	contractual	services	shall	be	in	writing	and	shall	

be	subject	 to	 the	same	terms	and	conditions	set	 forth	 in	 the	 initial	contract.	The	costs	of	any	contemplated	

renewal	shall	be	included	in	the	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	contracts	shall	not	be	renewed	for	more	than	

two	 (2)	 years	 unless	 competitively	 procured.	 Renewal	 shall	 be	 contingent	 upon	 satisfactory	 performance	

evaluations	by	the	District.	

(6) Contract	Manager	and	Contract	Administrator.	The	Board	may	designate	a	representative	to	

function	as	contract	manager,	who	shall	be	responsible	for	enforcing	performance	of	the	contract	terms	and	

Page 43



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	22	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

conditions	 and	 serve	 as	 a	 liaison	 with	 the	 contractor.	 The	 Board	may	 also	 designate	 a	 representative	 to	

function	as	contract	administrator,	who	shall	be	responsible	 for	maintaining	all	contract	 files	and	 financial	

information.	One	person	may	serve	as	both	contract	manager	and	administrator.	

(7) Emergency	Purchase.	The	District	may	make	an	emergency	purchase	of	contractual	services	

without	complying	with	these	rules.	The	fact	that	an	emergency	purchase	has	occurred	or	is	necessary	shall	

be	noted	in	the	minutes	of	the	next	Board	meeting.	

(8) Continuing	Contract.	Nothing	in	this	rule	shall	prohibit	a	continuing	contract	between	a	firm	

or	an	individual	and	the	District.		

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.033,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

	

	

	

Page 44



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	23	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.11	 Purchase	of	Goods,	Supplies,	or	Materials	

(1) Scope.		

(a) All	 purchase	 of	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials	 that	 do	 not	 exceed	 $2,500	 shall	 be	 made	

using	Good	Purchasing	Practices,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(h)	of	this	rule.	

(b) Unless	 otherwise	 exempt,	 all	 purchases	 of	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials	 that	 exceed	

$2,500	but	do	not	exceed	the	threshold	amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	 for	category	

four	 ($150,000),	 as	 such	 category	may	be	 amended	 from	 time	 to	 time,	 shall	 be	made	using	Quotations,	 as	

defined	in	Subsection	(2)(i)	of	this	rule.	

(c) Unless	 otherwise	 exempt,	 all	 purchases	of	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	materials	 that	 exceed	 the	

threshold	amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	for	category	four,	as	such	category	may	be	

amended	from	time	to	time,	shall	be	made	by	Competitive	Procedure,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(j)	of	this	

rule.	

(d) Contracts	 for	 purchases	 of	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials	 shall	 not	 be	 divided	 solely	 in	

order	to	avoid	the	requirements	of	these	rules.	

(e) For	good	cause	shown,	the	Board	may	waive	the	requirements	of	this	Section	when	such	

action	(i)	is	consistent	with	the	overall	objectives	of	the	District	and	(ii)	does	not	involve	a	purchase	of	goods,	

supplies,	or	materials	 that	exceeds	the	threshold	amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	 for	

category	four,	as	such	category	may	be	amended	from	time	to	time.	

(2) Definitions.	

(a) “Invitation	to	Bid”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	bids	with	the	title,	date	and	hour	of	the	public	

bid	opening	designated	 specifically	 and	defining	 the	 commodity	 involved.	 	 It	 includes	printed	 instructions	

prescribed	conditions	for	bidding,	evaluation	criteria,	and	provides	for	a	manual	signature	of	an	authorized	

representative.	

(b) “Request	for	Proposal”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	proposals	with	the	title,	date,	and	hour	

of	the	public	opening	designated	and	requiring	the	manual	signature	of	the	authorized	representative.	It	may	

Page 45



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	24	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

provide	 general	 information,	 applicable	 laws	 and	 rules,	 statement	 of	 work,	 functional	 or	 general	

specifications,	proposal	instructions,	work	detail	analysis,	and	evaluation	criteria	as	necessary.	

(c) “Responsive	 bid/proposal”	 means,	 a	 bid	 or	 proposal	 which	 conforms	 in	 all	 material	

respects	to	the	specifications	and	conditions	in	the	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposals	and	these	rules,	

and	the	cost	components	of	which	are	appropriately	balance.	A	bid/proposal	is	not	responsive	if	the	person	

or	firm	submitting	the	bid	fails	to	meet	any	requirement	relating	to	the	qualifications,	financial	stability,	or	

licensing	of	the	bidder.	

(d) “Lowest	responsible	bid/proposal”	means,	 in	the	sole	discretion	of	the	Board,	the	bid	or	

proposal	(i)	submitted	by	a	person	or	firm	capable	and	qualified	in	all	respects	to	perform	fully	the	contract	

requirements	and	with	the	integrity	and	reliability	to	assure	good	faith	performance,	(ii)	is	responsive	to	the	

invitation	 to	 bid	 or	 request	 for	 proposal	 as	 determined	 by	 the	 Board,	 and	 (iii)	 is	 the	 lowest	 cost	 to	 the	

District.	Minor	variations	in	the	bid	may	be	waived	by	the	Board.	Mistakes	in	arithmetic	extension	of	pricing	

may	be	corrected	by	the	Board.	Bids	may	not	be	modified	after	opening.	

(e) “Goods,	 supplies,	 and	 materials”	 means	 supplies,	 materials,	 goods,	 merchandise,	 food,	

equipment,	 information	technology,	and	other	personal	property,	 including	a	mobile	home,	 trailer	or	other	

portable	structure	with	floor	space	of	less	than	5,000	square	feet	purchased,	leased	or	otherwise	contracted	

for.	Goods,	supplies,	and	materials	do	not	include	printing,	insurance,	advertising	or	legal	notices.	

(f) “Purchase”	means	 acquisition	 by	 sale,	 rent,	 lease,	 lease/purchase	 or	 installment	 sale.	 It	

does	 not	 include	 transfer,	 sale,	 or	 exchange	 of	 goods,	 supplies	 or	materials	 between	 the	 District	 and	 any	

federal,	state,	regional,	or	local	government	entity	or	political	subdivision	of	the	state.	

(g) “Emergency	 purchase”	means	 a	 purchase	 necessitated	 by	 a	 sudden	 unexpected	 turn	 of	

events	(e.g.,	acts	of	God,	riot,	 fires,	 floods,	hurricanes,	accidents,	or	any	circumstances	or	cause	beyond	the	

control	of	the	Board	in	the	normal	conduct	of	its	business),	where	the	Board	finds	that	the	delay	incident	to	

competitive	bidding	would	be	detrimental	to	the	interests	of	the	District.	

(h) “Good	 Purchasing	 Practices”	 shall	 include	 but	 are	 not	 limited	 to	 the	 receipt	 of	 written	

quotations,	or	written	records	of	telephone	quotations.	

Page 46



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	25	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(i) 	“Quotations”	 shall	mean	written	quotations,	written	 records	 of	 telephone	or	 other	oral	

quotations	(including	the	name	and	address	of	each	respondent	and	the	amount	quoted),	or	informal	bids	to	

be	opened	upon	receipt.	 If	 the	District	 receives	 less	 than	 three	(3)	Quotations,	District	staff	 shall	 include	a	

statement	explaining	why	additional	quotes	were	not	received.	

(j) “Competitive	Procedure”	shall	mean	the	procedure	set	forth	in	Subsection	(3)	of	this	rule.	

(3) Procedure.	When	a	purchase	of	goods,	supplies,	or	materials	is	within	the	scope	of	this	rule,	

the	following	is	appropriate:	

(a) The	Board	shall	cause	to	be	prepared	a	notice	of	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal,	

as	appropriate.	

(b) Notice	of	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	shall	be	advertised	at	least	once	in	the	

newspaper	of	general	circulation	in	the	County	and	in	the	District.	The	notice	shall	allow	at	least	seven	days	

for	submittal	of	bids,	unless	the	Board,	for	good	cause,	determines	a	shorter	period	of	time	is	appropriate.	

(c) The	District	may	maintain	a	list	of	persons	interested	in	receiving	notices	of	invitations	to	

bid	or	requests	for	proposals.	Persons	who	provide	their	name	and	address	to	the	District	office	for	inclusion	

on	the	list	shall	receive	notices	by	mail.	

(d) Bids	or	proposals	shall	be	opened	at	the	time	and	place	noted	on	the	invitation	to	bid	and	

request	for	proposal.	Bids	and	proposals	shall	be	evaluated	in	accordance	with	the	invitation	or	request	and	

these	rules.	

(e) The	 lowest	 responsive	and	 responsible	bid	or	proposal	 shall	 be	accepted;	however,	 the	

Board	shall	have	the	right	to	reject	all	bids,	either	because	they	are	too	high	or	because	the	Board	determines	

it	 is	 in	 the	 best	 interest	 of	 the	 District.	 In	 the	 event	 the	 bids	 exceed	 the	 amount	 of	 funds	 available	 to	 or	

allocated	by	the	District	for	this	purchase,	the	bids	may	be	rejected.	The	Board	may	require	bidders	to	furnish	

performance	 and/or	 other	 bonds	 with	 a	 responsible	 surety	 to	 be	 approved	 by	 the	 board.	 Bidders	 not	

receiving	a	contract	award	shall	not	be	entitled	to	recover	any	costs	of	bid	preparation	or	submittal	from	the	

District	

Page 47



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	26	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(f) Notice	 of	 award	 of	 intent	 to	 award,	 including	 rejection	 of	 some	 or	 all	 bids,	 shall	 be	

provided	 in	writing	 to	 all	 bidders	 by	 United	 States	Mail	 or	 by	 hand	 delivery,	 and	 by	 posting	 same	 in	 the	

District	office	for	seven	(7)	days.	

(g) If	only	one	response	to	an	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	is	received,	the	District	

may	proceed	with	 procurement	 for	 goods,	 services,	 or	materials.	 If	 no	 response	 to	 an	 invitation	 to	 bid	 or	

request	for	proposal	is	received,	the	District	may	take	whatever	steps	are	reasonably	necessary	in	order	to	

proceed	with	the	procurement	of	goods,	services,	or	materials.	

(h) The	District	may	make	an	emergency	purchase	of	contractual	services	without	complying	

with	 these	 rules.	 The	 fact	 that	 an	 emergency	 purchase	 has	 occurred	 or	 is	 necessary	 shall	 be	 noted	 in	 the	

minutes	of	the	next	Board	meeting.	

(4) Nothing	in	this	Section	shall	preclude	the	purchase	of	goods,	supplies,	or	materials	pursuant	

to	state	contract.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.033,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 48



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	27	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.12	 Contracts	for	Construction	of	Authorized	Project	

(1) Scope.		

(a) All	 contracts	 for	 the	 construction	 of	 any	 project	 authorized	 by	 Chapter	 190,	 Florida	

Statutes,	 the	 total	construction	project	costs	of	which	are	estimated	 in	accordance	with	generally	accepted	

cost‐accounting	principles	not	to	exceed	$2,500	shall	be	made	using	Good	Purchasing	Practices,	as	defined	in	

Subsection	(2)(g)	of	this	rule.	

(b) All	 contracts	 for	 the	 construction	 of	 any	 project	 authorized	 by	 Chapter	 190,	 Florida	

Statutes,	 the	 total	construction	project	costs	of	which	are	estimated	 in	accordance	with	generally	accepted	

cost‐accounting	principles	to	be	in	excess	of	$2,500	but	not	in	excess	of	$200,000	(or	$50,000	for	electrical	

work)	 (as	 such	 threshold	 amounts	may	 be	 adjusted	 from	 time	 to	 time	 as	 provided	 in	 Section	 255.20(2),	

Florida	Statutes)	shall	be	made	using	Quotations,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(h)	of	this	rule.	

(c) All	 contracts	 for	 the	 construction	 of	 any	 project	 authorized	 by	 Chapter	 190,	 Florida	

Statutes,	 the	 total	construction	project	costs	of	which	are	estimated	 in	accordance	with	generally	accepted	

cost‐accounting	principles	to	exceed	$200,000	(or	$50,000	for	electrical	work)	(as	such	threshold	amounts	

may	 be	 adjusted	 from	 time	 to	 time	 as	 provided	 in	 Section	 255.20(2),	 Florida	 Statutes)	 shall	 be	made	 by	

Competitive	Procedure,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(i)	of	this	rule.	

(d) The	 construction	 of	 these	 projects	 may	 involve	 the	 purchase	 of	 contractual	 services	

and/or	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials	 as	 defined	 in	 Section	 A‐1.10	 and	 A‐1.11	 of	 these	 policies.	 Where	 a	

contract	for	construction	of	such	a	project	includes	goods,	supplies,	or	materials	and/or	contractual	services,	

the	District	may,	in	its	sole	discretion,	award	the	contract	according	to	the	rules	in	this	subsection	in	lieu	of	

separately	 bidding	 for	 construction,	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials,	 and	 contractual	 services.	 However,	 a	

project	shall	not	be	divided	solely	in	order	to	avoid	the	threshold	bidding	requirements.	

(e) For	good	cause	shown,	the	Board	may	waive	the	requirements	of	this	Section	when	such	

action	(i)	is	consistent	with	the	overall	objectives	of	the	District	and	(ii)	does	not	involve	a	project	authorized	

by	Chapter	 190,	 Florid	 Statutes,	 the	 total	 construction	project	 costs	 of	which	 are	 estimated	 in	 accordance	

with	generally	accepted	cost‐accounting	principles	to	exceed	$200,000	(or	$50,000	for	electrical	work)	(	as	

Page 49



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	28	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

such	 threshold	 amounts	 may	 be	 adjusted	 from	 time	 to	 time	 as	 provided	 in	 Section	 255.20(2),	 Florida	

Statutes).	

(2) Definitions.	

(a) “Invitation	to	Bid”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	bids	with	the	title,	date	and	hour	of	the	public	

bid	 opening	 designated	 specifically	 and	 defining	 the	 work	 involved.	 It	 includes	 printed	 instructions	

prescribing	all	conditions	for	bidding,	evaluation	criteria,	and	provides	for	manual	signature	of	an	authorized	

representative.	

(b) “Request	for	Proposal”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	proposals	with	the	title,	date,	and	hour	

of	the	public	opening	designated	and	requiring	the	manual	signature	of	an	authorized	representative.	It	may	

provide	 general	 information,	 applicable	 laws,	 and	 rules,	 statement	 of	 work,	 functional	 or	 general	

specifications,	proposal	instructions,	work	detail	analysis,	and	evaluation	criteria,	as	necessary.	

(c) “Responsive	 bid/proposal”	 means,	 a	 bid	 or	 proposal	 which	 conforms	 in	 all	 material	

respects	to	the	specifications	and	conditions	in	the	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	and	these	rules,	

and	the	cost	components	of	which	appropriately	balanced.	A	bid/proposal	is	not	responsive	if	the	person	or	

firm	 submitting	 the	 bid	 fails	 to	meet	 any	 requirements	 relating	 to	 the	 qualifications,	 financial	 stability,	 or	

licensing	of	the	bidder.	

(d) “Lowest	responsible	bid/proposal”	means,	in	the	sole	discretion	of	the	Board,	the	bid	(i)	

submitted	by	a	person	or	firm	capable	and	qualified	in	all	respects	to	perform	fully	the	contract	requirements	

and	with	the	integrity	and	reliability	to	assure	good	faith	performance,	(ii)	is	responsive	to	the	invitation	to	

bid	 or	 request	 for	 proposal	 as	 determined	 by	 the	Board,	 and	 (iii)	 is	 the	 lowest	 cost	 to	 the	District.	Minor	

variations	 in	 the	 bid	 may	 be	 waived	 by	 the	 Board.	 Mistakes	 in	 arithmetic	 extension	 of	 pricing	 may	 be	

corrected	by	the	Board.	Bids	may	not	be	modified	after	opening.	

(e) “Emergency	 purchase”	means	 a	 purchase	 necessitated	 by	 a	 sudden	 unexpected	 turn	 of	

events	(e.g.,	acts	of	God,	riot,	 fires,	 floods,	hurricanes,	accidents,	or	any	circumstances	or	cause	beyond	the	

control	of	the	Board	in	the	normal	conduct	of	its	business),	where	the	Board	finds	that	the	delay	incident	to	

competitive	bidding	would	be	detrimental	to	the	interests	of	the	District.	

Page 50



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	29	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(f) “District	 Representative”	means	 the	 person	 or	 group	 designated	 by	 the	 chairperson	 to	

administer	the	bidding	process.	The	District	Representative	may	be	the	chairperson,	the	Board,	any	member	

or	committee	of	the	Board,	District	Counsel,	District	Manager,	or	any	other	person.	

(g) “Good	 Purchasing	 Practices”	 shall	 include	 but	 are	 not	 limited	 to	 the	 receipt	 of	 written	

quotations,	or	written	records	of	telephone	quotations.	

(h) “Quotations”	 shall	mean	written	 quotations,	written	 records	 of	 telephone	 or	 other	 oral	

quotations	(including	the	name	and	address	of	each	respondent	and	the	amount	quoted),	or	informal	bids	to	

be	opened	upon	receipt.	 If	 the	District	 receives	 less	 than	 three	(3)	Quotations,	District	staff	 shall	 include	a	

statement	explaining	why	additional	quotes	were	not	received	

(i) “Competitive	Procedure”	 shall	mean	 the	procedure	set	 forth	 in	Sections	190.033(1)	and	

255.20,	Florida	Statutes,	and	Subsection	(3)	of	this	rule.	

(3) Procedure.		

(a) Notice	or	 invitation	 to	bid	or	 request	 for	proposal	 shall	be	advertised	at	 least	once	 in	a	

newspaper	of	 general	 circulation	 in	 the	County	and	 in	 the	District	 or	on	 the	District’s	website.	The	Notice	

shall	allow	at	least	seven	days	for	submittal	of	bids,	unless	the	Board,	for	good	cause,	determines	a	shorter	

period	of	time	is	appropriate.	

(b) The	District	may	maintain	lists	of	persons	interested	in	receiving	notices	of	invitation	to	

bid	or	request	for	proposals.	Persons	who	provide	their	name	and	address	to	the	District	office	for	inclusion	

on	the	list	shall	receive	notices	by	mail.	

(c) In	order	to	be	eligible	to	submit	a	bid	or	proposal,	a	firm	or	individual	must,	at	all	time	of	

receipt	of	the	bids	or	proposals:	

(1) Hold	the	required	applicable	state	professional	license	in	good	standing.	

(2) Hold	all	required	applicable	federal	licenses	in	good	standing,	if	any.	

(3) Hold	a	current	and	active	Florida	corporate	charter	to	be	authorized	to	do	business	in	

Florida	in	accordance	with	Chapter	607,	Florida	Statutes,	if	the	bidder	is	a	corporation.	

Page 51



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	30	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(4) Meet	 any	 special	 prequalification	 requirements	 set	 forth	 in	 the	 bid	 proposal	

specifications.	

Evidence	of	compliance	with	this	rule	may	be	submitted	with	the	bid,	if	required	by	the	District.	

(d) Bids	or	proposals	shall	be	opened	at	the	time,	date,	and	place	noted	on	the	invitation	to	

bid	 or	 request	 for	 proposal.	 Bids	 and	 proposals	 shall	 be	 evaluated	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 invitation	 or	

request	and	these	rules.	The	District	Representative	shall	evaluate	the	bids.	

(e) To	 assist	 in	 the	 determination	 of	 the	 lowest	 responsive	 and	 responsible	 bidder,	 the	

District	Representative	may	 invite	public	presentation	by	 firms	 regarding	 their	qualifications,	 approach	 to	

the	project,	and	ability	to	perform	the	contract	in	all	respects.	

(f) In	determining	the	lowest	responsive	and	responsible	bidder,	the	District	Representative	

may	consider,	in	addition	to	factors	described	in	the	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal,	the	following:	

(1) The	ability	and	adequacy	of	the	professional	personnel.	

(2) Past	performance	of	the	District	and	in	other	professional	employment	settings.	

(3) Willingness	to	meet	time	and	budget	requirements.	

(4) Geographic	location	of	the	firm	headquarters	or	office	in	relation	to	the	project.	

(5) Recent,	current,	and	projected	workloads	of	the	bidder.	

(6) Whether	the	firm	is	a	certified	minority	business	enterprise.	

(7) Volume	of	work	previously	awarded	to	the	bidder.	

(8) Whether	the	cost	components	of	the	bid	response	are	appropriately	balanced.	

(g) The	 lowest	 responsive	 and	 responsible	 bid/proposal	 shall	 be	 accepted;	 however,	 the	

Board	shall	have	the	right	to	reject	all	bids,	either	because	they	are	too	high	or	because	the	Board	determines	

it	is	in	the	best	interest	of	the	District.	The	Board	may	require	bidders	to	furnish	performance	and/or	other	

bonds	with	responsible	surety	to	be	approved	by	the	Board.	If	the	Board	received	fewer	than	three	responses	

to	an	 invitation	to	bid	or	request	 for	proposal,	 the	Board,	may,	 in	 its	discretion,	re‐advertise	 for	additional	

bids	without	rejecting	any	submitted	bid.	 In	 the	event	 the	bids	exceed	 the	amount	of	 funds	available	 to	or	

Page 52



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	31	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

allocated	by	the	District	for	this	purchase,	the	bids	may	be	rejected.	Bidders	not	receiving	a	contract	award	

shall	not	be	entitled	to	recover	any	costs	of	bid	preparation	or	submittal	from	the	District.	

(h) Notice	of	 the	award	or	 intent	 to	 award,	 including	 rejection	of	 some	or	 all	 bids,	 shall	be	

provided	in	writing	to	all	bidders	by	United	States	Mail	or	by	hand	delivery,	and	by	posting	the	same	in	the	

District	office	for	seven	(7)	days.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.033,	255.20,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 53



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	32	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.13	 Contracts	for	Maintenance	Services	

(1) Scope.		

(a) All	contracts	for	the	maintenance	of	any	District	facility	or	project	wherein	the	amount	to	

be	paid	by	the	District	does	not	exceed	$2,500	shall	be	made	using	Good	Purchasing	Practices,	as	defined	in	

Subsection	(2)(g)	of	this	rule.	

(b) Unless	 otherwise	 exempt,	 all	 contracts	 for	 the	 maintenance	 of	 any	 District	 facility	 or	

project	wherein	 the	 amount	 to	 be	 paid	 by	 the	 District	 exceeds	 $2,500	 but	 does	 not	 exceed	 the	 threshold	

amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	for	category	four	($150,000),	as	such	category	may	be	

amended	from	time	to	time,	shall	be	made	using	Quotations,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(h)	of	this	rule.	

(c) Unless	 otherwise	 exempt,	 all	 contracts	 for	 the	 maintenance	 of	 any	 District	 facility	 or	

project	 wherein	 the	 amount	 to	 be	 paid	 by	 the	 District	 exceeds	 the	 threshold	 amount	 provided	 Section	

287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	 for	category	 four,	as	 such	category	may	be	amended	 from	time	 to	 time,	 shall	be	

made	by	Competitive	Procedure,	as	defined	in	Subsection	(2)(i)	of	this	rule.	

(d) The	maintenance	of	 these	 facilities	 or	projects	may	 involve	 the	purchase	of	 contractual	

services	and/or	goods,	supplies,	or	materials	as	defined	in	Section	A‐1.10	and	A‐1.11	of	these	policies.	Where	

a	 contract	 for	 maintenance	 of	 such	 a	 facility	 or	 project	 includes	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials	 and/or	

contractual	services,	the	District	may,	in	its	sole	discretion,	award	the	contract	according	to	the	rules	in	this	

subsection	 in	 lieu	 of	 separately	 bidding	 for	 maintenance,	 goods,	 supplies,	 or	 materials,	 and	 contractual	

services.	However,	a	project	shall	not	be	divided	solely	in	order	to	avoid	the	threshold	bidding	requirements.	

(e) For	good	cause	shown,	the	Board	may	waive	the	requirements	of	this	Section	when	such	

action	(i)	is	consistent	with	the	overall	objectives	of	the	District	and	(ii)	does	not	involve	a	contract	for	the	

maintenance	 of	 any	District	 facility	 or	 project	wherein	 the	 amount	 to	 be	 paid	 by	 the	 District	 exceeds	 the	

threshold	amount	provided	in	Section	287.017,	Florida	Statutes,	for	category	four,	as	such	category	may	be	

amended	from	time	to	time.	

	

	

Page 54



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	33	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(2) Definition.	

(a) “Invitation	to	Bid”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	bids	with	the	title,	date	and	hour	of	the	public	

bid	 opening	 designated	 specifically	 and	 defining	 the	 work	 involved.	 It	 includes	 printed	 instructions	

prescribing	all	conditions	for	bidding,	evaluation	criteria,	and	provides	for	manual	signature	of	an	authorized	

representative.	

(b) “Request	for	Proposal”	is	a	solicitation	for	sealed	proposals	with	the	title,	date,	and	hour	

of	the	public	opening	designated	and	requiring	the	manual	signature	of	an	authorized	representative.	It	may	

provide	 general	 information,	 applicable	 laws	 and	 rules,	 statement	 of	 work,	 functional	 or	 general	

specifications,	proposal	instructions,	work	detail	analysis,	and	evaluation	criteria,	as	necessary.	

(c) “Responsive	 bid/proposal”	 means,	 a	 bid	 or	 proposal	 which	 conforms	 in	 all	 material	

respects	to	the	specifications	and	conditions	in	the	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	and	these	rules,	

and	the	cost	components	of	which	are	appropriately	balanced.	A	bid/proposal	is	not	responsive	if	the	person	

or	firm	submitting	the	bid	fails	to	meet	any	requirements	relating	to	the	qualifications,	financial	stability,	or	

licensing	of	the	bidder.	

(d) “Lowest	responsible	bid/proposal”	means,	 in	the	sole	discretion	of	the	Board,	the	bid	or	

proposal	(i)	submitted	by	a	person	or	firm	capable	and	qualified	in	all	respects	to	perform	fully	the	contract	

requirements	and	with	the	integrity	and	reliability	to	assure	good	faith	performance,	(ii)	is	responsive	to	the	

invitation	 to	 bid	 or	 request	 for	 proposal	 as	 determined	 by	 the	 Board,	 and	 (iii)	 is	 the	 lowest	 cost	 to	 the	

District.	 Minor	 variations	 in	 the	 bid	 or	 proposal	 may	 be	 waived	 by	 the	 Board.	 Mistakes	 in	 arithmetic	

extension	of	pricing	may	be	corrected	by	the	Board.	Bids	and	proposals	may	not	be	modified	after	opening.	

(e) “Emergency	 purchase”	means	 a	 purchase	 necessitated	 by	 a	 sudden	 unexpected	 turn	 of	

events	(e.g.,	acts	of	God,	riot,	 fires,	 floods,	hurricanes,	accidents,	or	any	circumstances	or	cause	beyond	the	

control	of	the	Board	in	the	normal	conduct	of	its	business),	where	the	Board	finds	that	the	delay	incident	to	

competitive	bidding	would	be	detrimental	to	the	interests	of	the	District.	

Page 55



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	34	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(f) “District	 Representative”	means	 the	 person	 or	 group	 designated	 by	 the	 chairperson	 to	

administer	the	bidding	process.	The	District	Representative	may	be	the	chairperson,	the	Board,	any	member	

or	committee	of	the	Board,	District	Counsel,	District	Manager,	or	any	other	person.	

(g) “Good	 Purchasing	 Practices”	 shall	 include	 but	 are	 not	 limited	 to	 the	 receipt	 of	 written	

quotations,	or	written	records	of	telephone	quotations.	

(h) “Quotations”	 shall	mean	written	 quotations,	written	 records	 of	 telephone	 or	 other	 oral	

quotations	(including	the	name	and	address	of	each	respondent	and	the	amount	quoted),	or	informal	bids	to	

be	opened	upon	receipt.	 If	 the	District	 receives	 less	 than	 three	(3)	Quotations,	District	staff	 shall	 include	a	

statement	explaining	why	additional	quotes	were	not	received	

(i) “Competitive	Procedure”	shall	mean	the	procedure	set	forth	in	Subsection	(3)	of	this	rule.	

(3) Procedure.		

(a) Notice	or	 invitation	 to	bid	or	 request	 for	proposal	 shall	be	advertised	at	 least	once	 in	a	

newspaper	or	 general	 circulation	 in	 the	County	and	 in	 the	District	 or	on	 the	District’s	website.	The	notice	

shall	allow	at	least	seven	days	for	submittal	of	bids,	unless	the	Board,	for	good	cause,	determines	a	shorter	

period	of	time	is	appropriate.	

(b) The	District	may	maintain	lists	of	persons	interested	in	receiving	notices	of	invitation	to	

bid	or	request	for	proposals.	Persons	who	provide	their	name	and	address	to	the	District	office	for	inclusion	

on	the	list	shall	receive	notices	by	mail.	

(c) In	order	to	be	eligible	to	submit	a	bid	or	proposal,	a	firm	or	individual	must,	at	all	time	of	

receipt	of	the	bids	or	proposals:	

(1) Hold	the	required	applicable	state	professional	license	in	good	standing.	

(2) Hold	all	required	applicable	federal	licenses	in	good	standing,	if	any.	

(3) Hold	 a	 current	 and	 active	 Florida	 corporate	 charter	 to	 be	 authorized	 to	 do	

business	in	Florida	in	accordance	with	Chapter	607,	Florida	Statutes,	if	the	bidder	is	a	corporation.	

(4) Meet	 any	 special	 prequalification	 requirements	 set	 forth	 in	 the	 bid	 proposal	

specifications.	

Page 56



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	35	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

Evidence	of	compliance	with	this	rule	may	be	submitted	with	the	bid,	if	required	by	the	District.	

(d) Bids	or	proposals	shall	be	opened	at	the	time,	date,	and	place	noted	on	the	invitation	to	

bid	 or	 request	 for	 proposal.	 Bids	 and	 proposals	 shall	 be	 evaluated	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 invitation	 or	

request	and	these	rules.	The	District	Representative	shall	evaluate	the	bids.	

(e) To	 assist	 in	 the	 determination	 of	 the	 lowest	 responsive	 and	 responsible	 bidder,	 the	

District	Representative	may	 invite	public	presentation	by	 firms	 regarding	 their	qualifications,	 approach	 to	

the	project,	and	ability	to	perform	the	contract	in	all	respects.	

(f) In	determining	the	lowest	responsive	and	responsible	bidder,	the	District	Representative	

may	consider,	in	addition	to	factors	described	in	the	invitation	to	bid		or	request	for	proposal,	the	following:	

(1) The	ability	and	adequacy	of	the	professional	personnel.	

(2) Past	performance	of	the	District	and	in	other	professional	employment	settings.	

(3) Willingness	to	meet	time	and	budget	requirements.	

(4) Geographic	location	of	the	firm	headquarters	or	office	in	relation	to	the	project.	

(5) Recent,	current,	and	projected	workloads	of	the	bidder.	

(6) Whether	the	firm	is	a	certified	minority	business	enterprise.	

(7) Volume	of	work	previously	awarded	to	the	bidder.	

(8) Whether	the	cost	components	of	the	bid	response	are	appropriately	balanced.	

(g) The	 lowest	 responsive	 and	 responsible	 bid/proposal	 shall	 be	 accepted;	 however,	 the	

Board	shall	have	the	right	to	reject	all	bids,	either	because	they	are	too	high	or	because	the	Board	determines	

it	is	in	the	best	interests	of	the	District.	The	Board	may	require	bidders	to	furnish	performance	and/or	other	

bonds	with	responsible	surety	to	be	approved	by	the	Board.	If	the	Board	receives	fewer	than	three	responses	

to	an	 invitation	 to	bid	or	 request	 for	proposal,	 the	Board	may,	 in	 its	discretion,	 re‐advertise	 for	additional	

bids	without	rejecting	any	submitted	bid.	In	the	event	the	bid	exceed	the	amount	of	the	funds	available	to	or	

allocated	by	the	District	for	this	purchase,	the	bids	may	be	rejected.	Bidders	not	receiving	a	contract	award	

shall	not	be	entitled	to	recover	any	costs	of	bid	preparation	or	submittal	from	the	District.	

Page 57



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	36	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(h) Notice	of	 the	award	or	 intent	 to	 award,	 including	 rejection	of	 some	or	 all	 bids,	 shall	be	

provided	in	writing	to	all	bidders	by	United	States	Mail	or	by	hand	delivery,	and	by	posting	the	same	in	the	

District	office	for	seven	(7)	days.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.033(3),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

Page 58



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	37	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.14	 Purchase	of	Insurance	for	District	Employees	

(1) Scope.		

(a) The	purchase	of	life,	health,	accident,	hospitalization,	legal	expense,	or	annuity	insurance,	

or	all	or	any	kind	of	such	 insurance	 for	 the	officers	and	employees	of	 the	District,	and	 for	health,	accident,	

hospitalization,	and	legal	expense	insurance	for	the	dependents	of	such	officers	and	employees	upon	a	group	

insurance	plan	by	the	District,	shall	be	governed	by	these	rules.	Nothing	in	this	rule	shall	require	the	District	

to	purchase	insurance.	For	good	cause	shown,	the	Board	may	waive	the	requirements	of	this	Section	when	

such	action	is	(a)	permitted	by	governing	law	and	(b)	consistent	with	the	overall	objectives	of	the	District.	

(2) Definitions.	

(a) “Invitation	 to	 Bid”	 is	 a	 solicitation	 for	 sealed	 bids	 with	 the	 title,	 date,	 and	 hour	 of	 the	

public	bid	opening	designated	specifically	and	defining	the	type	of	 insurance	requested.	It	 includes	printed	

instructions	prescribing	conditions	for	bidding,	evaluation	criteria,	and	provides	for	manual	signature	of	an	

authorized	 representative.	 An	 invitation	 to	 bid	 may	 contain	 ranges	 of	 coverage	 desired	 and	 deductible	

amounts.	

(3) Procedure.	For	a	purchase	of	insurance	within	the	scope	of	this	rule,	the	following	procedure	

shall	be	followed:	

(a) The	Board	shall	cause	to	be	prepared	a	notice	of	invitation	to	bid.	

(b) Notice	 of	 invitation	 to	 bid	 shall	 be	 advertised	 at	 least	 once	 in	 a	 newspaper	 of	 general	

circulation	in	the	County	and	in	the	District	or	on	the	District’s	website.	The	notice	shall	allow	at	least	seven	

(7)	 days	 for	 submittal	 of	 bids,	 unless	 the	 Board,	 for	 good	 cause,	 determines	 a	 shorter	 period	 of	 time	 is	

appropriate.	

(c) The	District	may	maintain	a	list	of	persons	interested	in	receiving	notices	of	invitations	to	

bid.	Persons	who	provide	their	name	and	address	to	the	District	office	for	inclusion	on	the	list	shall	receive	

notices	by	mail.	

(d) Bids	shall	be	opened	at	the	time	and	place	noted	on	the	invitation	to	bid.	

Page 59



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	38	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(e) If	only	one	response	to	an	invitation	to	bid	is	received,	the	District	may	proceed	with	the	

purchase.	 If	 no	 response	 to	 an	 invitation	 to	 bid	 is	 received,	 the	 District	 may	 take	 whatever	 steps	 are	

reasonably	necessary	in	order	to	proceed	with	the	purchase.	

(f) The	Board	has	the	right	to	reject	any	and	all	bids	and	such	reservations	shall	be	included	

in	all	solicitations	and	advertisements.	

(g) Simultaneously	 with	 the	 review	 of	 submitted	 bids,	 the	 District	 may	 undertake	

negotiations	with	those	companies	which	have	submitted	reasonable	and	timely	bids	and,	in	the	opinion	of	

the	Board,	are	 fully	qualified	and	capable	of	meeting	all	 services	and	requirements.	Bid	responses	shall	be	

evaluated	in	accordance	with	the	specifications	and	criteria	contained	in	the	invitation	to	bid;	in	addition,	the	

total	cost	to	the	District,	the	cost,	if	any,	to	District	officers,	employees,	or	their	dependents,	the	geographic	

location	 of	 the	 company’s	 headquarters	 and	 offices	 in	 relation	 to	 the	 District,	 past	 performance	 for	 the	

District,	 and	 the	 ability	 of	 the	 company	 to	 guarantee	 premium	 stability	may	 be	 considered.	 A	 contract	 to	

purchase	 insurance	 shall	 be	 awarded	 to	 that	 company	whose	 response	 to	 the	 invitation	 to	bid	best	meets	

overall	need	of	the	District,	its	officers,	employees,	and/or	dependents.	

(h) Notice	of	 award	of	 intent	 to	award,	 including	 rejections	of	 some	of	 all	bids,	 shall	be	

provided	in	writing	to	all	bidders	by	United	States	Mail	or	by	hand	delivery,	and	by	posting	the	same	in	the	

District	office	for	seven	(7)	days.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §112.08,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

Page 60



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	39	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.15	 Bid	Protests	of	Construction	Contracts	

Notwithstanding	 any	 other	 provision	 in	 these	 rules,	 the	 resolution	 of	 any	protests	 regarding	 the	

decision	to	solicit	or	award	a	contract	for	a	bid	or	proposal	under	Section	A‐1.12	of	these	policies	shall	be	in	

accordance	with	this	section.		

(1) Notice.	 The	 District	 shall	 give	 bidders	 written	 notice	 of	 its	 decision	 to	 award	 or	 intent	 to	

award	a	contact	–	 including	rejection	of	some	or	all	bids	by	United	States	Mail	or	by	hand	delivery,	and	by	

posting	 same	 in	 the	 District	 office	 for	 seven	 (7)	 days.	 The	 notice	 shall	 include	 the	 following	 statement:	

“Failure	to	file	a	protest	within	the	time	prescribed	in	Section	120.57(3),	Florida	Statutes,	or	failure	to	post	

the	bond	or	other	security	required	by	law	within	the	time	allotted	for	filing	a	bond,	shall	constitute	a	waiver	

of	proceedings	under	Chapter	120,	Florida	Statutes.”	

(2) Filing.	Any	person	who	 is	 affected	 adversely	by	 the	District’s	 decision	or	 intended	decision	

shall	file	with	the	District	a	notice	of	protest	in	writing	within	seventy‐two	(72)	hours	after	the	posting	of	the	

final	bid	tabulation	or	after	receipt	of	the	notice	of	the	District	decision	or	intended	decision,	and	shall	file	a	

formal	written	protest	within	ten	(10)	days	after	the	date	of	filing	of	the	notice	of	protest.	With	respect	to	a	

protest	 of	 the	 specifications	 contained	 in	 an	 invitation	 to	 bid	 or	 in	 a	 request	 for	 proposals,	 the	 notice	 of	

protest	shall	be	filed	in	writing	within	seventy‐two	(72)	hours	after	the	receipt	of	notice	of	the	project	plans	

and	specifications	in	an	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposals,	and	the	formal	written	protest	shall	be	filed	

within	ten	(10)	days	after	the	date	of	the	notice	or	protest	is	filed.	Failure	to	file	a	notice	of	protest	or	failure	

to	file	a	formal	written	protest	shall	constitute	a	waiver	of	all	further	proceedings.	The	formal	written	protest	

shall	state	with	particularity	the	facts	and	 law	upon	which	the	protest	 is	based	and	shall	conform	with	the	

requirements	of	Chapter	28‐110	of	the	Florida	Administrative	Code.	

(3) Award	Process.	Upon	receipt	of	 a	notice	of	protest	which	has	been	 timely	 filed,	 the	District	

shall	 stop	 the	bid	solicitation	process	or	 the	contract	and	award	process	until	 the	subject	of	 the	protest	 is	

resolved.	However,	 if	the	District	sets	forth	in	writing	particular	facts	and	circumstances	which	require	the	

continuance	of	 the	process	without	delay	 in	order	 to	avoid	an	 immediate	and	serious	danger	 to	 the	public	

health,	safety,	or	welfare,	the	award	process	may	continue.	

Page 61



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	40	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(4) Mutual	Agreement.	The	District,	on	 its	own	initiate	or	upon	the	request	of	a	protester,	shall	

provided	an	opportunity	 to	resolve	the	protest	by	mutual	agreement	between	the	parties	within	seven	(7)	

days	excluding	Saturdays,	Sundays,	and	legal	holidays	of	receipt	of	a	formal	written	request.	

(5) Informal	Proceeding.	 If	 the	subject	of	a	protest	 is	not	 resolved	by	mutual	agreement,	and	 if	

there	is	no	disputed	issue	of	material	fact,	an	informal	proceeding	shall	be	conducted	in	accordance	with	the	

procedural	guidelines	set	forth	in	Section	A‐1.08	of	these	policies.	

(6) Formal	 Proceeding,	 If	 the	 protest	 is	 not	 resolved	 by	 mutual	 agreement,	 and	 if	 there	 is	 a	

disputed	 issue	 of	 material	 fact,	 then	 the	 District	 shall	 refer	 the	 protest	 to	 the	 Division	 of	 Administrative	

Hearings	(DOAH)	for	proceedings	under	Section	120.57(1),	Florida	Statutes.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §120.57,	190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §120.57,	190.033,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007;	revised	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 62



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	41	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.16	 Bid	Protests	Relating	to	Any	Other	Award	

Notwithstanding	 any	 other	 provision	 in	 these	 rules,	 the	 resolution	 of	 any	protests	 regarding	 the	

decision	to	solicit	or	award	a	contract	for	a	bid	or	proposal	under	Section	A‐1.10,	A‐1.11,	A‐1.13,	or	A‐1.14	of	

these	policies	shall	be	in	accordance	with	this	section.	

(1) Notice.	The	District	shall	give	all	bidders	written	notice	of	 its	decision	to	award	or	 intent	to	

award	 a	 contact	 including	 rejection	 of	 some	 or	 all	 bids	 by	United	 States	Mail	 or	 by	 hand	delivery,	 and	by	

posting	same	in	the	District	office	for	seven	(7)	days.		

(2) Filing.	Any	person	who	 is	 affected	 adversely	by	 the	District’s	 decision	or	 intended	decision	

shall	file	with	the	District	a	notice	of	protest	in	writing	within	seventy‐two	(72)	hours	after	the	posting	of	the	

final	bid	tabulation	or	after	receipt	of	the	notice	of	the	District	decision	or	intended	decision,	and	shall	file	a	

formal	 written	 protest	 within	 seven	 (7)	 days	 after	 the	 date	 of	 filing	 of	 the	 notice	 of	 protest.	 The	 formal	

written	protest	shall	state	with	particularity	facts	and	law	upon	which	the	protest	is	based.	Failure	to	timely	

file	a	notice	of	protest	or	failure	to	timely	file	a	formal	written	protest	shall	constitute	a	waiver	of	all	further	

proceedings.	

(3) Award	Process.	Upon	receipt	of	 a	notice	of	protest	which	has	been	 timely	 filed,	 the	District	

shall	 stop	 the	bid	solicitation	process	or	 the	contract	and	award	process	until	 the	subject	of	 the	protest	 is	

resolved.	However,	 if	the	District	sets	forth	in	writing	particular	facts	and	circumstances	which	require	the	

continuance	of	 the	process	without	delay	 in	order	 to	avoid	an	 immediate	and	serious	danger	 to	 the	public	

health,	safety,	or	welfare,	the	award	process	may	continue.	

(4) Mutual	Agreement.	The	District,	on	its	own	initiative	or	upon	the	request	of	a	protester,	shall	

provide	an	opportunity	to	resolve	the	protest	by	mutual	agreement	between	the	parties	within	five	(5)	days	

excluding	‐	Saturdays,	Sundays,	and	legal	holidays		‐	of	receipt	of	a	formal	written	request.	

(5) Hearing.	If	the	subject	of	a	protest	is	not	resolved	by	mutual	agreement,	the	District	shall	hold	

a	proceeding	in	accordance	with	the	procedural	guidelines	set	forth	in	Section	A‐1.08	of	these	policies.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.033,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	October	8,	1991;	revised	May	15,	2007	

*				*				*	

Page 63



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	42	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

	
A‐1.17	 Purchase	of	Goods,	Equipment,	and	Contractual	Services	from	Other	Governmental	

Contracts	

(1) Conditions.	In	lieu	of	an	invitation	to	bid	or	request	for	proposal	or	soliciting	quotations,	the	

District	may	make	purchases	at	or	below	the	prices	specified	in	contracts	of	other	governments	and	agencies	

to	procure	goods	and	services	if	the	following	conditions	are	present.	

(a) The	bid	documents	and	selection	procedures	used	by	the	other	government	or	agency	are	

consistent	with	the	District’s	purchasing	policies;	

(b) The	vendor	 is	willing	 to	 sign	a	District	 contract	 form	 (if	 applicable)	 as	prepared	by	 the	

District;	

(c) The	vendor	 is	willing	 to	 offer	 to	 the	District	 the	 same	 terms,	 conditions,	 and	prices	 (or	

below	such	prices)	used	in	the	original	contract/bid;	and	

(d) The	unit	prices	 in	the	original	contract(s)	 include	every	item	that	the	District	 intends	to	

purchase	from	the	vendor.	

(2) Prohibition	on	Use.	Purchases	may	not	be	made	under	 this	Section	A‐1.17	 for	 the	 following	

types	of	agreements,	unless	first	approved	by	the	District	Board	of	Supervisors:	

(a) Construction	services.	

(b) Professional	services	contracts.	

(3) Permission	to	Use	District	Contacts.	The	District	allows	other	governmental	entities	to	make	

purchases	at	or	below	the	prices	specified	in	its	contracts.	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §163.3164,	190.033,	287.057,	287.042,	287.056,	Fla.	Stat.	

Florida	Administrative	Code	Rules:	 60A‐1.005,	60A‐1.047	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	December	15,	2009	

*				*				*	

	

Page 64



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	43	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

A‐1.18	 Conditions	and	Charges	for	District	Equipment	Services	

(1) Conditions.	The	District	shall	make	available	the	services	of	its	Vac‐Con	Jetter	truck,	remotely	

operated	vehicle	stormwater	 inspection	camera	(“ROV	Camera”),	 	and	Aquatic	Harvester	boat	(collectively,	

“District	 Equipment	 Services”)	 to	 home	 owners’	 associations	 (“HOAs”)	 and	 property	 owners’	 associations	

(“POAs”)	 located	within	 the	District	and	 to	governmental	agencies	 located	outside	of	 the	District	 (“Outside	

Agencies”)	upon	the	following	conditions:	

(a) The	provision	of	District	Equipment	Services	shall	be	limited	to	times	and	conditions	that	

do	not	interfere	with	the	District’s	use	of	such	equipment	or	ordinary	District	operations,	as	determined	by	

the	District	Manager.	

(b) HOAs,	POAs	and	Outside	Agencies	shall	be	 responsible	 for	paying	all	 applicable	charges	

for	the	District	Equipment	Services	as	provided	in	this	Section.	If	District	Equipment	Services	are	provided	

outside	of	the	regular	business	hours	of	the	District,	the	District	Manager	shall	impose	and	collect,	in	addition	

to	 the	 charges	 set	 forth	 in	 subsection	 (2)	 of	 this	 Section	 A‐1.18,	 such	 additional	 charges	 as	 necessary	 to	

compensate	the	District	fully	for	the	additional	costs	incurred	in	the	provision	of	such	services.	

(c) Outside	Agencies	 receiving	District	Equipment	 Services	 shall	 provide	 such	 insurance	 as	

deemed	appropriate	by	the	District	Manager	in	consultation	with	District	Counsel.	

(2) Charges.	The	following	charges	shall	apply	to	the	provision	of	the	District	Equipment	Services	

provided	to	HOAs,	POAs,	and	Outside	Agencies,	during	regular	business	hours	of	the	District:	

(a) Vac‐Con	Jetter	truck:	Minimum	fee	of	$400.00	per	half	day;	$800.00	per	full	day.	

(b) ROV	Camera:	Minimum	fee	of	$400.00	per	half	day;	$800.00	per	full	day.	

(c) Aquatic	Harvester	boat:	Minimum	fee	of	$600.00	per	half	day;	$1,200.00	per	full	day.	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §190.035(2),	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	December	15,	2009	

	

Page 65



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	44	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

A‐1.19	 Job	Descriptions	

(1) General.	 Job	 Descriptions	 document	 and	 describe	 the	 prescribed	 qualification	 for	 and	

essential	 functions	 of	 each	 administrative	 staff	 position	 and	 thereby	 promote	 organizational	 effectiveness	

and	efficiency.	

(2) Creation	and	Revision	of	Job	Description.	The	Board	shall	act	upon	written	recommendations	

submitted	by	the	District	Manager	to	create	new	positions.	The	recommendations	shall	include	the	job	title,	

pay	grade,	minimum	qualifications.	And	major	functions	for	these	positions.	The	District	Manager	may	find	it	

necessary	 to	 revise	duties	 and	 responsibilities,	which	may	be	done	without	Board	action.	Revisions	 to	 job	

titles,	pay	grades,	minimum	qualifications,	 and	major	 functions	 shall	 require	adoption	by	 the	Board	 in	 the	

manner	provided	in	the	Florida	Administrative	Procedure	Act,	Chapter	120,	Florida	Statutes.	

(3) Notice.	Once	a	position	has	been	established	or	the	job	description	revised,	each	staff	member	

employed	in	the	position	shall	be	made	aware	of	the	details	of	the	job	description.	

	

Specific		Authority:		 §190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented			 §120.54,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 	 Adopted	April	2,	2013	

*				*				*	

Page 66



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	45	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

A‐1.20	 Legal	Defense	and	Indemnification	

	(1)				General.	 	As	set	forth	in	this	policy	and	in	accordance	with	Sections	111.07	and	768.28,	Florida	

Statutes,	 the	 District	 hereby	 agrees	 to	 provide	 legal	 representation	 to	 defend	 any	 and	 all	 civil	 actions,	

including	federal	civil	rights	and	other	federal	civil	claims,	arising	from	a	complaint	for	damages	or	injuries	

suffered	as	a	result	of	any	action	or	omission	of	action	of	all	Board	members,	officers,	and	employees	present	

or	former,	arising	out	of	and	in	the	scope	of	his	or	her	employment	or	function,	unless,	in	the	case	of	a	tort	

action,	 the	Board	member,	officer,	or	employee	acted	 in	bad	 faith,	with	malicious	purpose,	or	 in	a	manner	

exhibiting	wanton	 and	willful	 disregard	 of	 human	 rights,	 safety,	 or	 property.	Defense	 of	 such	 civil	 actions	

includes,	but	 is	not	 limited	to,	any	civil	 rights	 lawsuit	seeking	relief	personally	against	any	Board	member,	

officer,	or	employee	 for	an	act	or	omission	under	color	of	state	 law,	custom	or	usage,	wherein	 it	 is	alleged	

that	 such	 Board	 member,	 officer,	 or	 employee	 has	 deprived	 another	 person	 of	 rights	 secured	 under	 the	

Federal	Constitution	or	 laws,	 including,	by	way	of	example,	actions	under	42	U.S.C.	§	1983	or	other	federal	

statute.	 The	 District	 hereby	 further	 agrees	 to	 provide	 legal	 representation	 to	 defend	 against	 any	 other	

litigation	arising	against	a	Board	member,	officer,	or	employee	from	the	performance	of	their	official	duties	

while	serving	a	public	purpose,	including	civil,	administrative	or	criminal	actions	as	permitted	by	law.	To	the	

extent	the	State	does	not	through	its	 laws	protect	 the	Board,	 its	officers,	and	employees	 	 from	liability,	 the	

District	 is	 committed	 to	 doing	 so	 to	 the	 extent	described	 in	 this	policy	 and	 as	permitted	by	 law.	By	 these	

provisions,	 the	District	does	not	waive	any	 immunity	 from	 liability	or	 limited	waiver	of	 such	 immunity	 as	

granted	under	Florida	law.	

(2)		 	Scope.	 	The	District,	 in	accordance	with	Florida	law,	agrees	that	the	following	Board	members,	

officers,	and	employees	of	the	District	shall	be	provided	the	benefit	of	the	indemnification,	support	and	legal	

defense	provisions	provided	in	this	policy:	

(a)	 		 All	members	of	the	Board	of	Supervisors;		

								(b)		 The	 District	 Manager,	 Secretary	 and	 Assistant	 Secretaries,	 Treasurer	 and	 Assistant	

Treasurers,	and	other	District	officers;	and		

							(c)	 	 All	employees	of	the	District.		

Page 67



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	46	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

	

	(3)	 	 	 Application.	 	 	 	 This	 policy	 is	 intended	 to	 evidence	 the	 District’s	 support	 of	 Board	members,	

officers,	and	employees	who	perform	acts	and	render	decisions	in	the	good	faith	performance	of	their	duties	

and	 functions.	 The	 District	 will	 neither	 support	 nor	 defend	 those	 actions	 or	 omissions	 committed	 by	 an	

individual	outside	the	scope	of	his	or	her	office	or	committed	in	bad	faith	or	with	malicious	purpose	or	in	a	

manner	 exhibiting	 wanton	 and	 willful	 disregard	 of	 human	 rights,	 safety,	 or	 property.	 The	 District	 Board	

member(s),	officer(s),	and/or	employees	in	question	are	each	presumed	to	have	acted	within	the	scope	of	his	

or	her	office	and	are	presumed	to	be	acting	in	good	faith,	without	a	malicious	purpose	and	not	in	a	manner	

exhibiting	 wanton	 and	 willful	 disregard	 of	 human	 rights,	 safety	 or	 property.	 The	 District’s	 Board	 of	

Supervisors	may	overcome	 this	presumption	only	by	unanimous	vote	of	 those	participating	and	voting,	 in	

accordance	with	Section	(7)	herein.	

	(4)			Payment.	 			The	District	agrees	to	pay	any	final	judgment,	including	damages,	fines,	penalties	or	

other	 damages,	 costs,	 and	 attorney’s	 fees	 and	 costs,	 arising	 from	 any	 complaint	 for	 damages	 or	 injuries	

suffered	 as	 a	 result	 of	 any	 action	 or	 omission	 of	 action	 of	 any	 Board	 member,	 officer,	 or	 employee	 as	

described	in	Section	111.07,	Florida	Statutes.	If	the	action	arises	under	Section	768.28,	Florida	Statues,	as	a	

tort	claim,	the	limitations	and	provisions	of	that	section	governing	payment	shall	apply.	If	the	action	is	a	civil	

rights	 action	 arising	 under	 42	 U.S.C.	 §	 1983,	 or	 similar	 federal	 statutes,	 payment	 for	 the	 full	 amount	 of	

judgment	may	be	made	unless	the	individual	has	been	determined	in	the	final	judgment	to	have	caused	the	

harm	 intentionally.	 The	 District	 agrees	 to	 pay	 any	 compromise	 or	 settlement	 of	 any	 claim	 or	 litigation	

described	in	this	paragraph,	provided,	however,	that	the	District	determines	such	compromise	or	settlement	

to	be	in	the	District’s	best	interest.	

(5)	 	 	 	Reimbursement.	 	 	 In	the	event	that	the	District	has	expended	funds	to	provide	an	attorney	to	

defend	a	Board	member,	officer,	or	employee	who	is	found	to	be	personally	liable	by	virtue	of	actions	outside	

the	scope	of	his	or	her	employment	or	function,	or	is	found	to	have	acted	in	bad	faith,	with	malicious	purpose,	

or	 in	a	manner	exhibiting	wanton	and	willful	disregard	of	human	rights,	safety,	or	property,	 the	 individual	

Page 68



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	47	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

shall	be	required	to	reimburse	the	District	for	funds	so	expended.	The	District	may	recover	such	funds	in	a	

civil	action	against	such	individual.	

(6)				Insurance.					The	District	may	insure	itself	in	order	to	cover	all	reasonable	costs	and	fees	directly	

arising	out	of	or	in	connection	with	any	legal	claim	or	suit	that	directly	results	from	a	decision	or	act	made	by	

a	Board	member,	officer,	or	employee	while	performing	the	duties	and	functions	of	his	or	her	position.		

(7)	 	 	 Procedure	 to	 Rebut	 Presumption	 of	 Automatic	 Payment.	 	 To	 rebut	 the	 presumption	 of	 the	

automatic	payment	of	 judgments	or	provision	of	 legal	 representation	under	 this	policy,	 at	 least	one	of	 the	

following	 determinations	 shall	 be	 made	 by	 a	 unanimous	 decision	 of	 the	 District’s	 Board	 of	 Supervisors	

participating	and	voting:	

														(a)		 The	actions	of	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee	were	outside	the	scope	of	

his	or	her	duties	and	authority;	or	

																(b)	 	The	acts	or	omissions	of	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee	constituted	bad	

faith,	 malicious	 purpose,	 intentional	 infliction	 of	 harm	 or	 were	 done	 in	 a	 manner	 exhibiting	 wanton	 and	

willful	disregard	of	human	rights,	safety	or	property;	or	

																(c)	 		The	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee	received	financial	profit	or	advantage	

to	which	he	or	she	was	not	legally	entitled.	

(8)				Requirements	for	Legal	Representation.		To	 ensure	 the	 provision	 of	 legal	 representation	

pursuant	to	this	policy,	the	following	must	be	met:	

																(a).		A	copy	of	the	summons,	complaint,	notice,	demand	letter	or	other	document	or	pleading	

in	 the	 action,	 or	 a	 letter	 setting	 forth	 the	 substance	 of	 any	 claim	 or	 complaint,	 must	 be	 delivered	 to	 the	

District	Chairman,	Vice	Chairman,	District	Manager	or	District	Attorney	within	fourteen	(14)	calendar	days	

after	actual	receipt	of	any	such	document	together	with	a	specific	request	in	writing	that	the	District	defend	

or	provide	representation	for	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee;	and	

														(b).		The	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee	must	cooperate	continuously	and	fully	with	

the	District	in	the	defense	of	the	action.	

Page 69



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	48	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

																(c).	 Notwithstanding	 any	 other	 provision	 herein,	 including	 Subsection	 (7),	 any	

indemnification,	legal	defense,	or	other	protection	provided	pursuant	to	this	representation	shall	not	extend	

to:	

																		 1.			 Consulting	 or	 other	outside	professional	 or	business	 activities	 for	which	 the	

Board	 member,	 officer,	 and/or	 employee	 received	 financial	 or	 other	 material	 compensation,	 which	 are	

outside	the	scope	of	his	or	her	District	duties	and	authority;	and	

																			 2.			 Any	 independent	 contractor	 for	 whom	 defense	 or	 indemnification	 is	 not	

authorized	 pursuant	 to	 Section	 2	 of	 this	 policy,	 unless	 the	Board	 votes	 to	 authorize	 such	 indemnification,	

legal	defense,	or	other	protection;	and		

																			 3.	 Any	fine,	penalty	or	other	punishment	imposed	as	a	result	of	conviction	for	a	

criminal	offense,	and	any	legal	fees	and	costs	incurred	to	defend	criminal	prosecution	in	which	a	conviction	is	

obtained;	and	

																			 4.	 Any	indemnification	or	defense	prohibited	by	law.	

(9)		Retention	of	Legal	Counsel.			In	the	event	legal	representation	or	defense	is	provided	pursuant	to	

this	policy,	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee	may	either:	

									(a)		 Retain	 legal	 counsel	 appointed	 by	 the	 District,	 in	which	 case	 legal	 counsel	 shall	 be	

paid	directly	by	the	District;	or	

	 								(b)		 Retain	legal	counsel	chosen	by	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee,	in	which	

case	the	District	shall	have	the	right	to:		

1.		 Approve,	in	advance,	any	agreement	for	legal	fees	or	disbursements;	and		

																											2.	 Pay	 all	 or	 part	 of	 the	 legal	 fees,	 costs	 and	 other	 disbursements	 and	 to	 set	 a	

maximum	for	legal	fees,	costs	and	other	disbursements;	and	

																												3.	 Direct	the	defense	and	settle	or	compromise	the	action	or	claim;	and	

																												4.		 Reduce	or	offset	any	monies	that	may	be	payable	by	the	District	by	any		

court	costs	or	attorneys	fees	awarded	to	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee.	

Page 70



CHAPTER		A‐1	

Page	49	of	49										St.	Lucie	West	Services	District	(SLW	0698001	Chapter	A‐1	Rules	Amended	MR	CL)	by	Resolution	2013‐04.doc																										

(10)	 No	 Third	 Party	 Beneficiaries.	 	 The	 benefits	 of	 this	 policy	 shall	 not	 enlarge	 the	 rights	 that	

would	have	been	available	to	any	third‐party	plaintiff	or	claimant	in	the	absence	of	this	policy.	

(11)	 Binding	Effect.	 	To	 the	extent	permitted	by	 law,	 this	policy	 shall	 inure	 to	 the	benefit	 of	 the	

heirs,	personal	representatives	and	estate	of	the	Board	member,	officer,	and/or	employee.	

(12)	 Effect	 of	 amendments.	 	 The	 District	 reserves	 the	 right	 to	 change,	modify	 or	withdraw	 this	

policy	 in	 its	 sole	discretion,	 except	 as	 to	 actions,	 demand	or	 other	 claims	based	on	 acts	 or	 omissions	 that	

occurred	before	the	effective	change,	modification	or	withdrawal	of	this	policy.	

	

Specific	Authority:	 §§120.54,	190.011(5),	Fla.	Stat.	

Law	Implemented:	 §§120.54,	111.07,	768.28,	Fla.	Stat.	

History:	 	 Adopted	_________	

	

*				*				*	

	

	

Page 71



 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 
 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

DA 1  Status Report/Updates 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                               
 

Page 72



 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 
 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

DE 1  Status Report/Updates 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                               
 

Page 73



St. Lucie West Services District 
 Board Agenda Item 
 Tuesday, December 6, 2016 

Item                                                                                                                                                             
DM 1 Consider Approval of Agreement for Legal Services with the Law Offices of David 

Miklas, PA 
 
Summary                                                                                                                                                    

Provided for your review and approval is the Agreement for Labor Related Legal Services from the Law Offices 
of David Miklas, PA. The District received notice that the current Law Offices of Richeson & Coke PA was 
closing on November 30, 2016 and that David Miklas of their office was starting his own firm and staying local. 
Mr. Miklas has a long established history with the District and the proposed rate structure is lower than the 
agreement with Richeson & Coke so we see no reason to go outside the County to get representation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation                                                                                                                                        
 
Staff recommends approval of the Agreement with the Law Offices of David Miklas, PA for Labor and 
Employment Law related services. 
 
District Manager:  Dennis Pickle 
 
 

Budget Impact 
Project Number:  Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:  This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 

Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 
 
 

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



  

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 

Item                                                                                                                                               

DM 2 Other Items/Updates 

 

Summary                                                                                                                                        

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 78



   

St. Lucie West Services District 
 Board Agenda Item 
 Tuesday, December 6, 2016 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 1     Monthly Report Public Works Department                
 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

The following monthly report is provided for your review and information as an update on the day-to-day 
operations and tasks of the Public Works department. 

 

Page 79



• Algae
▪ 2
▪ 0

• Injection Treatments
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 1
▪ 0

• 
▪ 40
▪ 5

• 

• Encroaching Preserves
▪ 8
▪ 6

• Lygodium Treatments
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 0

• 
▪ 2
▪ 2

• 
▪ 0

5
8

373
0
0
0
3
0

  Work Orders
Preserves Maintenance

  Service Orders

Exotic Vegetation Treatments
  Service Orders

  Operations & Maintenance:

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Exotic Plant Removal Division:

Lake Cleaning Schedule - Available Upon Request

Tree Removals
  Service Orders

Midge Fly Treatments

Tape Grass (Harvester)

Miscellaneous

  Scheduled Maintenance

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

389

  Aquatics Division:
  Operations & Maintenance:

310

Sonar Treatments

October 2016
Monthly Status Report 

Public Works Department 
St. Lucie West Services District

Work Orders

Grand Total

Service Orders

Storm Water
Vac-Con

Dredge Barge
Video Ray
Irrigation

Shop

Division
Aquatics

Exotic Plant Removal
43
16
8

31
0

101
0

111

Page 80



  Exotic Plant Removal Division Cont'd:
• 

▪ 1
▪ 0

• 
▪ 5

• None

  Storm Water Division:

• Locates
▪ 372

• Street Flooding
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 7
▪ 0

• 
▪ 1

• 
▪ 0
▪ 1

• 

• 1
• 30
• 0

• 

• 50
• 
• 

• 0
• 0

• 

• 0
• 
• 

• 101
• 0

• 

Miscellaneous Service Orders
  Scheduled Maintenance

None

Estimated Yardage Cleaned

None

  Operations & Maintenance:

None

Service Orders Viewing Pipes

Service Orders Cleaning Out Pipes
Service Orders Cleaning Out Structures

Estimated Footage Cleaned

  Scheduled Maintenance
None

  Other Information

  Storm Water Division / Video Ray:

Miscellaneous Service Orders

  Other Information

  Operations & Maintenance:
Service Orders Dredging Pipes

Miscellaneous Service Orders
  Scheduled Maintenance

  Storm Water Division / Dredge Barge:

0
Removed 10 yards debris 

Cascades Lake #80 attempted to dredge shallow west end

Improved Landscaping & Mowing

  Operations & Maintenance:
  Storm Water Division / Vac Con:

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Scheduled Maintenance

  Service Orders
Miscellaneous

Right of Way Mowing done the first 2 weeks of each month.

  Work Orders
Grate Cleaning

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Operations & Maintenance:

  Work Orders

  Scheduled Maintenance

Miscellaneous
  Service Orders

Vine Management

  Service Orders

Page 81



• Pressure Complaints
▪ 0
▪ 0

• Customer Has No Water Complaints
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 0
▪ 0

• 
▪ 0
▪ 3

• None

• 0
• 0 Reported Reuse Customer Violations
• 77,941,982
• 4.14
• 0

• 111
▪ 12
▪ 72
▪ 27

• None

  Work Orders

Flows (Gallons)

  Shop Division :
  Operations & Maintenance:

Service Orders for Repairs

  Scheduled Maintenance

Irrigation Violations

Vehicles
Equipment
Other

Surficial Well Usage (Gallons)

Monthly Rainfall (Inches)

  Irrigation Division:
  Operations & Maintenance:

  Service Orders

  Scheduled Maintenance

  Other Information

  Work Orders

Staining Complaints
  Service Orders

Miscellaneous

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

  Service Orders
  Work Orders

Page 82



  

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 2 Monthly Report on Utilities Operations  
   
Summary 
This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the day-to-day Utilities operations of 
the St. Lucie West Services District, and will be provided once a month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



  

St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Utilities Operations Report 

Summary ERC Water/Wastewater Update

WATER

Commercial Accounts 489

Residential Accounts 6285
Total Plant Capacity Based on 3.6 MGD 14,400.00 ERC's    (Factor 250 gpd)
Sold prior to October 2010 including the Reserve 10,564.23 ERC's
The Reserve Commitment for 2017 1,900.00 ERC's
Available Water ERC as of October 1st 3,013.13
Sold in FY 2017 (see water table below) 0.00 ERC's
Total Remaining Capacity for Water 3,013.13

WATER RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL THE RESERVE  WATER FEES COLLECTED 
ERC's sold in Oct-16 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Nov-16 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Dec-16 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Jan-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Feb-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Mar-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Apr-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in May-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Jun-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Jul-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Aug-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Sep-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
Total Water ERC's sold for FY 2017 0 0.0 0 -$                                       

WASTEWATER

Commercial Accounts 432

Residential Accounts 6285

Total Plant Capacity Based on 2.1 MG/TMADF 17,500.00
Sold prior to October 2010 including the Reserve 10,438.00 ERC's
The Reserve Commitment for 2017 1,800.00 ERC's
Available Wastewater ERC as of October 1st 6,150.35
Sold in FY 2017 (see W.Water table below) 0.00 ERC's
Total Remaining Capacity for Wastewater 6,150.35

WASTEWATER RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL THE RESERVE
 WASTEWATER FEES 

COLLECTED 
ERC's sold in Oct-16 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Nov-16 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Dec-16 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Jan-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Feb-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Mar-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Apr-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in May-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Jun-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Jul-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Aug-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
ERC's sold in Sep-17 0 0.0 0 -$                                       
Total Wastewater ERC's sold for FY 2017 0 0.0 0 -$                                       

New Connections in October: -                          ERC's 

 ERC's based on three month average daily flow 
capacity 

 

Page 84



  

St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Utilities Operations Report
October-16

Water Treatment Facility
·        Total finished water produced for October was 48.61 MG

·            The finished water produced for the previous twelve months was 571.00 MG

·        The average daily flow of finished water for October was 1.568 MG

·        The annual average daily flow of finished water for October was 1.56 MG

·        The three month average daily flow of finished water for October was 1.52 MG

·            The Water Treatment Plant capacity is operating at  43.6%

·            The Water Plant Annual withdrawal capacity per SFWMD WUP is at 89.2%

Water Treatment Plant Projects for October:
Preparing for Sulfuric and Caustic tank change out.

Wastewater Treatment Facility
·         Total Influent Wastewater flow for October was 46.38 MG

·         Total Effluent Wastewater flow for October was 43.52 MG

·         The average daily flow of Influent Wastewater for October was 1.50 MG

·         The average daily flow of Effluent Wastewater for October was 1.40 MG

·         The annual average daily flow of Influent treated for October was 1.44 MG

·         The three month average daily flow of Influent treated for October was 1.42 MG

·             The Wastewater Plant capacity is operating at  67%

Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects for October:
Completed PM's
Installed Hydro ranger from old surge tank on reject pond lift station

Staffing through out the Hurricane  
 
 

Page 85



  

 
 

Page 86



  

 

1.49

1.61
1.57

1.59 1.57
1.64

1.58
1.51 1.51

1.58 1.52

1.47
1.57

1.27 1.37
1.42

1.52
1.54 1.57

1.45

1.39 1.39
1.34 1.41 1.36

1.50

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16

F
l
o
w

I
n

M
i
l
l
o
n

G
a
l
l
o
n
s

St. Lucie West Services District 
Water & Wastewater Average Daily Flows

Potable
Finished Water
Flow Mo./Avg.

Wastewater
Influent Flow
Mo./Avg.

 

46.05
48.28

48.67
49.34

45.59

50.97
47.51

46.89
45.14

48.91 47.02

44.05
48.61

39.41 41.07

43.87

47.11

44.77

48.80

43.51 43.16
41.55 41.60 43.62

40.80

46.38

0.6

10.6

20.6

30.6

40.6

50.6

60.6

Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15 Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16

F
l
o
w

I
n

M
i
l
l
o
n

G
a
l
l
o
n
s

St. Lucie West Services District 
Water & Wastewater Monthly Total Flows

Potable
Finished
Water Total
Flow

Wastewater
Influent Total
Flow

 

Page 87



  

 
 
 
 
 

76%
77% 77%

80% 79%

88%

81%

81%

73%

79%
75%

71%

79%

60% 62%

64%

68%
71% 73%

72%

70%
67%

65% 65% 65%
67%

38%

45% 44% 44% 44%
46%

44%
42% 42%

44%
42% 41%

44%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15 Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16
Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15 Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16

Raw Percent Max Mth Water Capacity 76% 77% 77% 80% 79% 88% 81% 81% 73% 79% 75% 71% 79%

Wastewater Percent Capacity Influent 60% 62% 64% 68% 71% 73% 72% 70% 67% 65% 65% 65% 67%

Finished Water Percent Capacity 38% 45% 44% 44% 44% 46% 44% 42% 42% 44% 42% 41% 44%

St. Lucie West Services District
Water and Wastewater Percent Capacity

Raw Percent Max Mth Water
Capacity

Wastewater Percent Capacity
Influent

Finished Water Percent
Capacity

 
 
 
 
  

Page 88



  
  

St. Lucie West Services District 
 Board Agenda Item 
 Tuesday, December 6, 2016 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 3 Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects 
 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      
This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the Capital Improvement Projects for the 
St. Lucie West Services District, and will be provided once a month. 

 

WM014 Guettler Brothers Construction finished Wetland 1 Vertical Relocation Project, Staff in the 
Monitoring Phase for the TMDL Grant 

WM013 Johnson Davis completed work on the 4E to 5 interconnect  

WM019 Arcadis working on design and permitting of the Lake Harvey Project 

SW069 Staff and ISS started design of Main Irrigation Pump Station Improvements 

SW077 ISS started design of Potable Water line extension 

SW086 Arcadis working on design of new Office Complex 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 
  
 

Page 89



  
  

 

Project No.
Project 

Engineer
Project 

Manager
Contractor / 

Vendor

 Approved 
Capital Budget 
Funds in Dollars 

 Encumbered / 
Actual Cost of 

Project in 
Dollars 

 Available 2015/16 
Budget 

P
u
r
c
h

Projected 
Completion 

Project

O
c

t-
2

0
1

6

N
o

v
-2

0
1

6

D
e

c
-2

0
1

6

Ja
n

-2
0

1
7

F
e

b
-2

0
1

7

M
a

r-
2

0
1

7

A
p

r-
2

0
1

7

M
a

y
-2

0
1

7

Ju
n

-2
0

1
7

Ju
l-

2
0

1
7

A
u

g
-2

0
1

7

S
e

p
-2

0
1

7

WM001 BH 121,400           -                   121,400              0% Stormwater Emergency Repairs

WM013 Arcadis RL/BH
Johnson 

Davis 856,419           786,674          69,745                100%
Basin 4E & 5 Canal and Storage Enlargement

WM014 Arcadis RL/BH
66,500             41,503            24,997                100%

Basin 2C Wetland Vertical Relocation & Storage 
Enlargement

TMDL Grant Monitoring 
Phase

WM019 Arcadis RL/BH 585,000           49,180            535,820              0% Lake Harvey Project
SW001 JM 137,624           -                   137,624              0% Lift Station renewal & replacement
SW037 JM 186,300           -                   186,300              0% Emergency Renewal and Replacement Projects
SW085 JM 55,125             -                   55,125                0% Emergency (Assoc. Irr.) R&R Projects
SW047 JM 29,303             -                   29,303                0% Structural Repairs Manholes
SW049 JM 25,856             -                   25,856                0% Protective Coating Manholes
SW050 JM 50,000             -                   50,000                0% WTP Grounding System Improvements
SW063 JM 1,050               -                   1,050                  0% New Meters
SW064 JM 185,000           -                   185,000              0% Replacement Meters
SW066 JM -                    -                   -                      0% WWTF Painting & Sealing of Tanks
SW069 BH 825,000           21,146            803,854              0% Irrigation Ph 1 -Improve Existing WWTP Pump Station
SW073 JM 14,019             -                   14,019                0% Replacement Backflow Preventors
SW077 JM 255,000           34,665            220,335              0% Water Line Extension
SW081 JM 145,000           -                   145,000              0% WTP Calcite Tank Project
SW084 JM 34,000             -                   34,000                0% UGU Potable Water Flushing Devices
SW089 JM 81,000             -                   81,000                0% Reuse Pond Liner Protection
SW091 JM 20,000             -                   20,000                0% UGU Irrigation Flushing Devices
SW090 JM 99,000             -                   99,000                0% Clarifier Weir covers
SW086 RL/DP 1,122,368       1,122,368           0% New Office Complex
SW087 BH 39,887             39,887            -                      100% Irrigation SCADA Conversion

Total 3,305,532$     95,698            3,209,834           
TOTAL PROJECTS IN PROGRESS OR COMPLETE 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PROJECTS IN DESIGN PHASE 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Available budget amounts listed in RED are over Budget PROJECTS IN BID PHASE 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Available budget amounts listed in Blue are at or under Budget PROJECTS IN CONSTRUCTION PHASE 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PROJECTS COMPLETED 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 PROJECT TRACKER - St Lucie West Services District

Page 90



St. Lucie West Services District
Board Agenda Item

Tuesday, December 6, 2016

Item
CA 4 Monthly Reports on Billing and Customer Service

Summary

The following are the totals from the accounts receivable reports for the September billing cycle.
1. Actual Consumption

Water 34,020,910 Gallons
Sewer 32,666,140 Gallons
Sewer BOD 1,068.69 Gallons
Sewer TSS 629.99 Gallons

2. Amount Billed
Total Water $251,235.76
Total Sewer $291,029.89
Total Irrigation $148,914.35

3. Billing
Total Water 6,774
Total Sewer 6,717
Total Irrigation 6,414

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the monthly Billing and 
Customer Service Operations.

Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Commercial Water 
15,952,970

Commercial Sewer  
14,598,200

Commercial Sewer BOD 
1,068.69

Commercial Sewer TSS 
629.99

Residential  Water 
18,067,940

Residential Sewer 
18,067,940

Actual Consumption 
October 2016 

Page 96



 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 
 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 5  Financial Statements for October, 2016 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Attached for your review are the Financial Reports for the period ending October 31, 2016. 

 Financial Statements for all District Funds 

 Check Register for General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund 

o Summary of Checks over $35,000 

 Balance Sheet Report for all Funds 

 Bank Reconciliation Summary for all Depository Accounts  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation                                                                                                                                        
 
No Action Required. 
                                                                                                                                                  

Budget Impact 

 

None. 

                                                                                                                                                              

Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

                                                                                                                                                               

Page 97



 St Lucie West Service District

 Budget vs. Actual (General Fund)
 October 2016 through October 2016

Oct '16 -Oct '16 Budget $ +/- Budget

% of 
Current 
Budget

Previous Year 
% of Previous 
Year Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

1-04000 · GF SLWSD GENERAL FUND REVENUE 7,379.53 2,828,379.00 -2,820,999.47 0.26% 0.0%

Total Income 7,379.53 2,828,379.00 -2,820,999.47 0.26% 0.0%

Gross Income 7,379.53 2,828,379.00 -2,820,999.47 0.26% 0.0%

Expense

1-05000 · GF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 75.00 15,312.00 -15,237.00 0.49% 13.0%

1-06000 · GF DISTRICT MANAGER 8,000.00 27,689.00 -19,689.00 28.89% 0.0%

1-07000 · GF FINANCE 10,696.15 162,061.00 -151,364.85 6.6% 70.0%

1-12000 · GF GRANT MANAGEMENT 0.00 1,132.00 -1,132.00 0.0% 0.0%

1-13000 · GF CLERK TO THE BOARD 0.00 12,833.00 -12,833.00 0.0% 0.0%

1-14000 · GF AQUATICS DIVISION-PERSNL 24,871.64 328,165.00 -303,293.36 7.58% 6.4%

1-15000 · GF ADMINISTRATION DIV-PERSNL 112,469.03 659,185.00 -546,715.97 17.06% 11.5%

1-16000 · GF STORM WATER MGMT-PERSNL 33,740.79 411,555.00 -377,814.21 8.2% 6.6%

1-17000 · GF EXOTIC PLNT RMVL DIV-PERSNL 16,369.91 197,822.00 -181,452.09 8.28% 7.1%

1-18000 · GF SHOP OPERATIONS-PERSNL 5,471.63 71,872.00 -66,400.37 7.61% 6.0%

1-19000 · GF GENERAL COUNSEL 0.00 40,931.00 -40,931.00 0.0% 0.0%

1-23000 · GF SPECIAL COUNSEL 0.00 7,922.00 -7,922.00 0.0% 0.0%

1-26000 · GF ENGINEERING 0.00 37,587.00 -37,587.00 0.0% 0.0%

1-29000 · GF POLLUTION CONTROL 0.00 4,842.00 -4,842.00 0.0% 0.0%

1-31000 · GF AQUATICS DIVISION-OPERATING 6,485.79 213,714.00 -207,228.21 3.04% 2.7%

1-33000 · GF ADMINISTRATION DIV-OPERATING 6,809.85 520,441.00 -513,631.15 1.31% 2.3%

1-34000 · GF STORM WATER MGMT-OPERATING 4,148.57 150,161.00 -146,012.43 2.76% 12.4%

1-35000 · GF EXOTIC PLANT RMVL-OPERATING 15,606.59 120,671.00 -105,064.41 12.93% 6.3%

1-36000 · GF SHOP OPERATIONS-OPERATING 403.52 39,629.00 -39,225.48 1.02% 1.6%

1-46000 · GF RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT 25,674.00 121,400.00 -95,726.00 21.15% 0.7%

Total Expense 270,822.47 3,144,924.00 -2,874,101.53 8.61% 4.7%

Net Ordinary Income -263,442.94 -316,545.00 53,102.06

Net Income -263,442.94 -316,545.00 53,102.06

Notes: 1) October is approximately 0% (0/10) of the way through the District's normal NAV Assessment  

     collection  period. Therefore income should be at or above 0% at this point. 

2) October is approximately 8.33% (1/12) of the way through the District's fiscal year. Therefore, normal

                    ongoing expenses should be around 8.33% or lower at this point.

Page 98



 St Lucie West Service District

 Budget vs. Actual (WMB Debt Service)
 October 2016 through October 2016

Oct '16 -Oct '16 Budget $ +/- Budget
% of Current 

Budget

Previous Year 
% of Previous 
Year Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

2-04000 · WB WTR MGMT BEN SRS 1999A REV 98.03 2,391,899.97 -2,391,801.94 0.0% 0.0%

Total Income 98.03 2,391,899.97 -2,391,801.94 0.0% 0.0%

Gross Income 98.03 2,391,899.97 -2,391,801.94 0.0% 0.0%

Expense

2-05000 · WB  WTR MGMT BEN SRS 1999A DS 0.00 2,363,071.00 -2,363,071.00 0.0% 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 2,363,071.00 -2,363,071.00 0.0% 0.0%

Net Ordinary Income 98.03 28,828.97 -28,730.94

Net Income 98.03 28,828.97 -28,730.94

Notes: 1) October is approximately 0% (0/10) of the way through the District's normal NAV Assessment  

                 collection  period. Therefore income should be at or above  0% at this point. 

2) The majority Bond payment is not until May each year so the expense should remain very low until the May report where

                   it will increase significantly. Then the expense will hold steady until the end of the year.

Page 99



 St Lucie West Service District

 Budget vs. Actual (Cascades Debt Service)
 October 2016 through October 2016

Oct '16 - Oct '16 Budget $ +/- Budget
% of Current 

Budget

Previous Year % 
of Previous Year 

Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

3-04000 · CB CASCADES SRS 1998 REVENUE 5.38 209,040.00 -209,034.62 0.0% 0.0%

Total Income 5.38 209,040.00 -209,034.62 0.0% 0.0%

Gross Income 5.38 209,040.00 -209,034.62 0.0% 0.0%

Expense

3-05000 · CB CASCADES SRS 1998 DEBT SVC 0.00 198,903.00 -198,903.00 0.0% 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 198,903.00 -198,903.00 0.0% 0.0%

Net Ordinary Income 5.38 10,137.00 -10,131.62

Net Income 5.38 10,137.00 -10,131.62

Notes: 1) October is approximately 0% (0/10) of the way through the District's normal NAV Assessment  

                 collection  period. Therefore income should be at or above 0% at this point. 

2) The majority Bond payment is not until May each year so the expense should remain very low until the May report where

                   it will increase significantly. Then the expense will hold steady until the end of the year.

Page 100



 St Lucie West Service District

 Budget vs. Actual (Water & Sewer Fund)
 October 2016 through October 2016

Oct '16 - Oct '16 Budget $ +/- Budget
% of Current 

Budget

Previous Year % 
of Previous Year 

Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

5-04000 · WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER REVENUE 46,738.39 8,951,681.00 -8,904,942.61 0.52% 0.1%

Total Income 46,738.39 8,951,681.00 -8,904,942.61 0.52% 0.1%

Gross Income 46,738.39 8,951,681.00 -8,904,942.61 0.52% 0.1%

Expense

5-05000 · WS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 88.19 15,489.00 -15,400.81 0.57% 12.9%

5-06000 · WS DISTRICT MANAGER 0.00 17,029.00 -17,029.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-07000 · WS FINANCE 30,706.36 320,219.00 -289,512.64 9.59% 0.1%

5-09000 · WS PROPERTY CONTROL 1,807.20 11,411.00 -9,603.80 15.84% 0.0%

5-11000 · WS UTILITY RATE CONSULTANT 0.00 14,845.00 -14,845.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-13000 · WS CLERK TO THE BOARD 0.00 17,498.00 -17,498.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-14000 · WS ADMIN DVSN-PERSNL 135,805.14 956,672.00 -820,866.86 14.2% 8.8%

5-15000 · WS WATER TRTMNT PLANT-PERSNL 27,934.27 368,971.00 -341,036.73 7.57% 6.6%

5-16000 · WS WASTEWATER TRTMT PL-PERSNL 29,316.09 376,918.00 -347,601.91 7.78% 6.5%

5-17000 · WS UNDERGROUND UTIL-PERSNL 50,006.16 592,243.00 -542,236.84 8.44% 6.5%

5-18000 · WS IRRIGATION DIV-PERSNL 4,109.25 62,099.00 -57,989.75 6.62% 7.1%

5-19000 · WS GENERAL COUNSEL 0.00 42,045.00 -42,045.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-23000 · WS SPECIAL COUNSEL 0.00 8,767.00 -8,767.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-26000 · WS ENGINEERING 750.00 74,288.00 -73,538.00 1.01% 0.0%

5-27000 · WATER & SEWER DEBT SERVICE 0.00 2,524,602.00 -2,524,602.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-28000 · WS  WATER & SEWER SERVICES 0.00 907,281.00 -907,281.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-29000 · WS ADMIN DIV-OPERATING 14,557.23 1,129,263.00 -1,114,705.77 1.29% 2.9%

5-30000 · WS WATER TRTMNT PLANT-OPER 11,797.89 651,324.00 -639,526.11 1.81% 3.8%

5-31000 · WS WASTEWATER TRTMT PL-OPER 1,743.73 598,953.00 -597,209.27 0.29% 2.1%

5-32000 · WS UNDERGROUND UTIL-OPERATING 5,194.91 587,515.00 -582,320.09 0.88% 1.9%

5-33000 · WS IRRIGATION DIV-OPERATING 2,117.65 293,241.00 -291,123.35 0.72% 0.6%

Total Expense 315,934.07 9,570,673.00 -9,254,738.93 3.3% 2.8%

Net Ordinary Income -269,195.68 -618,992.00 349,796.32

Net Income -269,195.68 -618,992.00 349,796.32

Notes: 1) October is approximately 0% (0/12) (revenues are billed a month behind)of the way 

 through the District's billed revenue period. Therefore, normal billed income should be around 0% or higher at this point.

2) October is approximately 8.33% (1/12) of the way through the District's fiscal year. Therefore, normal

                    ongoing expenses should be around 8.33% or lower at this point.

Page 101



 St Lucie West Service District

 Budget vs. Actual (Water & Sewer Capital)
 October 2016 through October 2016

Oct '16 - Oct '16 Budget $ +/- Budget
% of Current 

Budget

Previous Year 
% of Previous 
Year Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

5-36000 · WS CAP REVENUES

5-36001 · INTEREST - R&R 4076011209 134.69 134.69 100.0% 1.6%

5-36002 · INTEREST - WWCF - 4076011236 9.44 219.00 -209.56 4.31% 0.0%

5-36003 · INTEREST - 2004 BOND ISSUE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2.0%

5-36004 · INTEREST - WCF 4076011227 33.62 176.00 -142.38 19.1% 0.0%

5-36005 · WATER IMPACT FEES 0.00 497,832.00 -497,832.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-36006 · WW IMPACT FEES 0.00 2,876.00 -2,876.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-36007 · R&R TRANSFER FROM W&S OPERATING 0.00 907,281.00 -907,281.00 0.0% 0.0%

Total 5-36000 · WS CAP REVENUES 177.75 1,408,384.00 -1,408,206.25 0.01% 0.0%

Total Income 177.75 1,408,384.00 -1,408,206.25 0.01% 0.0%

Gross Income 177.75 1,408,384.00 -1,408,206.25 0.01% 0.0%

Expense

5-37000 · WS RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT CIP

5-37004 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW049 0.00 25,856.00 -25,856.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37006 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW064 82,500.00 185,000.00 -102,500.00 44.6% 0.0%

5-37007 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW001 0.00 137,624.00 -137,624.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37009 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW037 1,597.00 186,300.00 -184,703.00 0.86% 0.0%

5-37013 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW047 0.00 29,303.00 -29,303.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37014 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW050 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37018 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW069 0.00 700,000.00 -700,000.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37020 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW066 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37027 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW073 0.00 14,019.00 -14,019.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37029 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW081 0.00 145,000.00 -145,000.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37030 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW083 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-37031 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW084 0.00 34,000.00 -34,000.00 0.0% 0.9%

5-37032 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW085 0.00 55,125.00 -55,125.00 0.0% 0.0%

Total 5-37000 · WS RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT CIP 84,097.00 1,512,227.00 -1,428,130.00 5.56% 0.0%

5-38000 · WS WATER CONNECT FEE CIP

5-38011 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW072 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-38012 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW077 0.00 220,000.00 -220,000.00 0.0% 0.0%

5-38013 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW080 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%

Total 5-38000 · WS WATER CONNECT FEE CIP 0.00 220,000.00 -220,000.00 0.0% 2.6%

5-39000 · WS WASTEWATER CONNECT FEE CIP

5-39011 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW062 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5-39000 · WS WASTEWATER CONNECT FEE CIP 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Expense 84,097.00 1,732,227.00 -1,648,130.00 4.86% 0.8%

Net Ordinary Income -83,919.25 -323,843.00 239,923.75

-83,919.25 -323,843.00 239,923.75

Notes: 1) Capital Projects all happen at varying times and have varying durations. Therefore there is no hard rule for what percentage 

                  any given project should be at during any given point throughout the year.

Page 102



Date Num Name Memo Credit

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1-00001 · SUNTRUST (GF operating) #1363

10/10/2016 6467 NEXAIR, LLC ANNUAL PAYMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 900.00
10/10/2016 6468 SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC. PO#73712-ASSESSMENT ROLL PREPARATION (2016) 8,000.00
10/10/2016 6469 UNIFIRST 240.00
10/10/2016 6470 ANAGO PO#73715-OCTOBER JANITORIAL SERVICES 395.00
10/10/2016 6471 CAPITAL OFFICE PRODUCTS PO#73702-ASSORTED OFFICE SUPPLIES 32.98
10/10/2016 6472 CINTAS CORPORATION PO#73698-ASSORTED FIRST AID SUPPLIES 57.04
10/10/2016 6473 EXTRA SPACE STORAGE INC. ANNUAL PAYMENT-ACCOUNT#1002872363 2,259.00
10/10/2016 6474 GONANO & HARRELL PO#73717-SEPTEMBER 2016 LEGAL SERVICES 4,907.49
10/10/2016 6475 JOHNSON ENGINEERING, INC. PO#73699-SLWSD WETLAND #1 PROJECT PROF SVCS TH... 1,674.00
10/10/2016 6476 NEXAIR, LLC PO#73710-OXYGEN 73.26
10/10/2016 6477 RICHESON & COKE, P.A. PO#73722-LEGAL SERVICES FOR LABOR & EMPLOYMENT I... 141.00
10/10/2016 6478 SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC. PO#73713-SEPTEMBER 2016 MANAGEMENT FEES 7,219.28
10/10/2016 6479 ST LUCIE CO BALING & RECYCLING 405.90
10/10/2016 6480 TREASURE COAST LAWN EQUIPMENT 187.30
10/10/2016 6481 UNIFIRST 249.24
10/10/2016 6482 UNITED SITE SERVICES OF FLORIDA, INC. PO#73708-SERVICE CALL 80.50
10/10/2016 6483 VELDE FORD, INC. PO#73676-MODULE 334.06
10/10/2016 6484 WASTE PRO - FT. PIERCE ANNUAL PAYMENT FY 16-17 ACCT#7437 3,773.16
10/10/2016 6485 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF FL SEPTEMBER 2016 HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 60,157.19
10/10/2016 6486 HUMANA VISION INSURANCE CO BILLING ID#591100-001-VISION INSURANCE-OCTOBER 2016 419.01
10/10/2016 6487 PRINCIPAL LIFE INSURANCE-OCTOBER 2016-ACCT. NO. 1044710-10001 2,909.75
10/10/2016 6488 THE LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE CO. LIFE INSURANCE FOR OCTOBER 2016-ACCOUNT NUMBER... 2,841.77
10/12/2016 debit ASCENSUS PR 10/12/16 (9/24/16-10/7/16) 1,374.60
10/14/2016 debit Paychex Time clock chrg (10/4/16)  Stmt# 15341062 525.00
10/14/2016 6490 AMERICAN EXPRESS 10,050.16
10/14/2016 6491 ANAGO PO#73753-NOVEMBER JANITORIAL SERVICES 395.00
10/14/2016 6492 APPLE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. PO#73736-ASSORTED OPERATING SUPPLIES 13.76
10/14/2016 6493 ARCADIS US INC. 4,923.25
10/14/2016 6494 ARMADILLO DIRT WORKS, LLC PO#73745-SAND FOR HURRICANE MATTHEW 187.50
10/14/2016 6495 COMO OIL COMPANY OF FLORIDA PO#73694-DYED-ULTRA LOW SULPHUR 691.73
10/14/2016 6496 COMPUTER NETWORK SERVICES PO#73756-MANAGED SERVICES OCTOBER 2016 2,125.00
10/14/2016 6497 DEBONAIR SERVICES PO#73487A-SERVICE CALL/FREON/CURRENT RELAY 290.00
10/14/2016 6498 ELPEX PO#73696-TIRES 978.08
10/14/2016 6499 FPL PO#73759-ELECTRICAL SERVICES 39,655.75
10/14/2016 6500 GEORGIA WESTERN, INC. PO#73650-MOLY SS GREASE & SHIPPING CHARGES 231.42
10/14/2016 6501 Johnson-Davis Incorporated 182,844.33
10/14/2016 6502 LOWE'S 2,757.04
10/14/2016 6503 NAPA AUTO SUPPLY OF PORT ST. LUCIE VOID:
10/14/2016 6504 PHYSICIANS IMMEDIATE CARE (E) PO#73754-EMPLOYEE SCREENINGS 90.00
10/14/2016 6505 SAM'S CLUB  DISCOVER ASSORTED OPERATING SUPPLIES 366.45
10/14/2016 6506 SYSTEM DESIGN WIZARDS, INC. PO#73757-WEBSITE MAINTENANCE & HOSTING SEPTEMB... 656.60
10/14/2016 6507 TREASURE COAST LAWN EQUIPMENT PO#73734-IGNITION SWITCH 21.99
10/14/2016 6508 TREASURE COAST NEWSPAPERS PO#73758-ADVERTISING FEES 513.98
10/14/2016 6509 VERIZON WIRELESS PO#73763-CELL PHONE SERVICES 1,494.52
10/14/2016 6510 VERO CHEMICAL DISTRIBUTORS INC 764.30
10/14/2016 6511 WageWorks, Inc. PO#73752-COBRA DIRECT BILL FOR SEPTEMBER 2016 49.65
10/17/2016 6512 NAPA AUTO SUPPLY OF PORT ST. LUCIE 3,527.19
10/21/2016 6513 ALPHA BOATS UNLIMITED PO#73638-HYD VALVE 2 STACK & SHIPPING CHARGES 431.65
10/21/2016 6514 ANISE McGARITY ADVERTISING PO#73798-NYLON OUTDOOR FLAGS 62.00
10/21/2016 6515 APPLE MACHINE AND SUPPLY CO. PO#73764-STEEL TUBE 105.60
10/21/2016 6516 ARCADIS US INC. PO#55159J-WETLAND #1 CONSTRUCTION SVCS FROM 06/... 1,750.00
10/21/2016 6517 C&C Consultants PO#73809-PREMISES ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY POLICY ... 39,797.00
10/21/2016 6518 COMCAST CABLE ANNUAL PAYMENT FY16-17 ACCOUNT#0164338134... 3,110.76
10/21/2016 6519 ELPEX PO#73733-TIRES 923.72
10/21/2016 6520 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES PO#73741-ASSORTED OPERATING SUPPLIES 232.50
10/21/2016 6521 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD PO#73690-ULTRABOND A9 HIGH STRNTH EPOXY 204.48
10/21/2016 6522 HELENA CHEMICAL CO. 4,190.00
10/21/2016 6523 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 115.24
10/21/2016 6524 LaRochelle Enterprise, Inc. 773.85
10/21/2016 6525 PITNEY BOWES PO#73795-METER REFILL FOR ACCOUNT NUMBER 2127976 149.00
10/21/2016 6526 STAMM MANUFACTURING PO#73791-POST SOLENOID 30.00
10/21/2016 6527 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLORIDA, INC PO#73742-TICKETS TRANSMITTED FOR SEPTEMBER 2016 80.26
10/21/2016 6528 THOMPSON TRACTOR CO. PO#73695-LNK U/WA WING RELEASE LEVER/SHIPPING CH... 161.89
10/21/2016 6529 TOW MASTERS OF PORT ST. LUCIE PO#73773-TOWING SERVICES ON 10/17/16 110.00
10/21/2016 6530 TREASURE COAST LAWN EQUIPMENT 386.50
10/21/2016 6531 USABLUEBOOK PO#73660A-PROBE FOR YSI METER 330.45
10/21/2016 6532 WETLANDS MANAGEMENT INC. PO#73804-WATER SAMPLING & AUTO-COMPOSITOR MAIN... 1,300.00
10/21/2016 6533 WINDSTREAM COMMUNICATIONS PO#73794-TELEPHONE SERVICES 699.93
10/25/2016 6534 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF FL OCTOBER 2016 HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 60,157.19
10/26/2016 ASCENSUS PR 10/26/16 (10/8/16-10/21/16) 1,318.37
10/28/2016 6535 APPLE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. PO#73812-HOSE 6.72
10/28/2016 6536 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF FL NOVEMBER 2016 HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 61,626.54
10/28/2016 6537 CHEMICAL CONTAINERS, INC. PO#73643-PUMP BODY 242.89
10/28/2016 6538 ELPEX PO#73817-TIRES 537.63
10/28/2016 6539 FLOWERS CHEMICAL LABORATORIES PO#73824-LAB SERVICES 970.00
10/28/2016 6540 FRANKLIN TEMPLETON BANK AND TR OCTOBER 2016 CONTRIBUTIONS (OCTOBER SEP) 17,493.61
10/28/2016 6541 HUMANA VISION INSURANCE CO BILLING ID#591100-001-VISION INSURANCE-NOVEMBER 20... 419.01
10/28/2016 6542 IRRIGATION BY MIKE MARBURGER, INC. PO#73803-TICKETS FROM 09/20/16 TO 10/19/16 720.00
10/28/2016 6543 LAKE FOREST @ ST. LUCIE WEST HOA, INC. REIMBURSEMENT FOR CASSIA TREES 2,400.00
10/28/2016 6544 MERCHANT TRANSPORT AND AFFILIATES PO#73775-40 TON CRANE SERVICE-UNLOAD 2 PUMPS 583.20
10/28/2016 6545 PATRICK McCALLISTER COMPOSITION AND SUBMITTAL OF 500 WORD PRESS REL... 150.00

St Lucie West Service District
Check Register
As of October 31, 2016

Page 103



Date Num Name Memo Credit

10/28/2016 6546 PRINCIPAL LIFE INSURANCE-NOVEMBER 2016-ACCT. NO. 1044710-10001 2,938.35
10/28/2016 6547 THE LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE CO. LIFE INSURANCE FOR NOVEMBER 2016-ACCOUNT NUMBE... 2,882.77
10/28/2016 6548 TREASURE COAST FLEET REPAIR PO#73783-REMOVED RUSTED BRAKE CHAMBERS & INSTA... 595.24
10/28/2016 6549 TREASURE COAST LAWN EQUIPMENT PO#73811-LINE/GALLON MIX/CHAIN LOOPS 470.27

Total 1-00001 · SUNTRUST (GF operating) #1363 560,240.85

1-00002 · SUNTRUST (GF R&R Fund) # 3968

Total 1-00002 · SUNTRUST (GF R&R Fund) # 3968

5-00002 · SUNTRUST (WS Operating) #7918
10/10/2016 6939 BARBARA E. CALDERON CUSTOMER REFUND-BARBARA E. CALDERON-197357620 14.99
10/10/2016 6940 BRITTANI BIDOT CUSTOMER REFUND-BRITTANI BIDOT-1975513246 20.42
10/10/2016 6941 EDSEL BILLINGY CUSTOMER REFUND-EDSEL BILLINGY-195996146 45.30
10/10/2016 6942 ILONA LICHTBLAU CUSTOMER REFUND-ILONA LICHTBLAU-94679194 11.02
10/10/2016 6943 JERRY RANERI CUSTOMER REFUND-JERRY RANERI-212394700 47.36
10/10/2016 6944 RICHARD M. CARGIUOLO CUSTOMER REFUND-RICHARD M. CARGIUOLO-11591122 97.41
10/10/2016 6945 RICHARD SLATER CUSTOMER REFUND-RICHARD SLATER-206898122 107.90
10/10/2016 6946 AMERIGAS PO#73719-CYLINDER 0.84
10/10/2016 6947 AMERIGAS ANNUAL PAYMENT FOR FY 2016-2017 126.00
10/10/2016 6948 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO. 149.53
10/10/2016 6949 COAST PUMP & SUPPLY CO., INC. 128.32
10/10/2016 6950 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 7,015.80
10/10/2016 6951 GRAYBAR 1,827.00
10/10/2016 6952 ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING COMPANY 4,050.72
10/14/2016 6953 ANTOINE PONSOT CUSTOMER REFUND-ANTOINE PONSOT-201514324 32.80
10/14/2016 6954 BAERBEL B. MCINTYRE CUSTOMER REFUND-BAERBEL B. MCINTYRE-1396313628 11.45
10/14/2016 6955 ELISA DALMAN-HESS CUSTOMER REFUND-ELISA DALMAN-HESS-36593546 54.70
10/14/2016 6956 JACK MENDES CUSTOMER REFUND-JACK MENDES-73777168 29.11
10/14/2016 6957 MARY GALLO CUSTOMER REFUND-MARY GALLO-87518490 46.58
10/14/2016 6958 SERGE SAVITCHEFF, JR. CUSTOMER REFUND-SERGE SAVITCHEFF, JR.-159874918 46.66
10/14/2016 6959 WBC COLLECTIONS, LP CUSTOMER REFUND-WBC COLLECTIONS, LP-203393550 10.85
10/14/2016 6960 ARCADIS US INC. PO#73747-SLWSD UTILITY SYSTEM PROF SVCS 08/22/16 T... 481.39
10/14/2016 6961 COAST PUMP & SUPPLY CO., INC. PO#73592A-ASSORTED IRRIGATION PVC PIPE 63.31
10/14/2016 6962 COMO OIL COMPANY OF FLORIDA PO#73711-DYED-ULTRA LOW SULPHUR 2,895.43
10/14/2016 6963 ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING COMPANY PO#73600-HYPOCHLORITE SOLUTIONS 1,247.00
10/14/2016 6964 OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL PO#73749-SERVICE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 2016 4,728.78
10/14/2016 6965 RevSpring, Inc. PO#73755-STATEMENTS 19.76
10/14/2016 6966 SYSTEMATIC SERVICES INC. PO#73746-PICK UP 100HP MOTOR & INSTALL 5,683.23
10/14/2016 6967 UNITED RENTALS PO#73729-CONES 438.40
10/14/2016 6968 VERO CHEMICAL DISTRIBUTORS INC 19,345.39
10/21/2016 6969 AMANDA REHM CUSTOMER REFUND-AMANDA REHM-197333372 27.73
10/21/2016 6970 GARRY L. HENDEL CUSTOMER REFUND-GARRY L. HENDEL-2112912596 21.47
10/21/2016 6971 GUSTAV SCHEUBLE CUSTOMER REFUND-GUSTAV SCHEUBLE-1175911464 46.26
10/21/2016 6972 WEI WU CUSTOMER REFUND- WEI WU-185691960 28.41
10/21/2016 6973 ACCURATE SEPTIC SERVICES INC. PO#73740-LIQUID WASTE RECEIVED PER GALLON 210.00
10/21/2016 6974 APPLE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. PO#73766-WRENCH/SCREWDRIVER/FREIGHT CHARGE 201.55
10/21/2016 6975 AQUIFER MAINT. & PERFORMANCE SYSTEMS, INC PO#73617-REPAIRS TO WELL PUMP 7,950.57
10/21/2016 6976 ARMADILLO DIRT WORKS, LLC PO#73691-THE VINEYARDS-871 GRAND RESERVES BLVD 1,291.97
10/21/2016 6977 AUGUSTA FIBERGLASS COATINGS, INC. PO#73274B-BULK STORAGE TANK 7,173.75
10/21/2016 6978 ELPEX PO#73765-TIRES 184.88
10/21/2016 6979 FLOWERS CHEMICAL LABORATORIES 4,284.00
10/21/2016 6980 HORIZON DISTRIBUTORS INC. PO#73768-2" COUPLING & PURPLE FLAGS 84.20
10/21/2016 6981 HYDROCORP PO#73739-CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM MG... 550.00
10/21/2016 6982 PALM TRUCK CENTERS INC. PO#73785-CHOCK-WHEE 62.52
10/21/2016 6983 PUBLIC RESOURCES MANAGEMENT GR PO#73391B-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FROM 09/01/16 TO ... 8,414.12
10/21/2016 6984 RevSpring, Inc. PO#73793-STATEMENTS 336.31
10/21/2016 6985 SPEEDY AIR CONDITIONING SERVICE, LLC PO#73735-INSTALLED NEW AIR CONDITIONING UNIT 4,475.00
10/21/2016 6986 SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR PO#73797-ASP SERVICE BUREAU-MAINTENANCE START N... 2,745.54
10/21/2016 6987 THE BUSHEL STOP, INC. PO#73778-1 PALLET SOD & PALLET CHARGE 191.00
10/21/2016 6988 WATER WERKS, INC. PO#73456-FLOW IQ2100 RADIO READ METER 82,500.00
10/28/2016 6989 ANTONIO GONZALEZ CUSTOMER REFUND-ANTONIO GONZALEZ-213414918 57.51
10/28/2016 6990 PENNY JACOBS CUSTOMER REFUND-PENNY JACOBS-199555364 54.40
10/28/2016 6991 ROGER MOORE CUSTOMER REFUND-ROGER MOORE-183434794 25.57
10/28/2016 6992 SELMA SCHEVERS CUSTOMER REFUND-SELMA SCHEVERS-208116558 63.61
10/28/2016 6993 AUGUSTA FIBERGLASS COATINGS, INC. PO#73274C-FREIGHT CHARGES 2,575.00
10/28/2016 6994 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO. PO#73679-ASSORTED ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 63.03
10/28/2016 6995 COAST PUMP & SUPPLY CO., INC. 959.93
10/28/2016 6996 DAVID PECKHAM WATER CONSERVATION REBATE 2016-17 6 98.00
10/28/2016 6997 EILEEN YOUNGHANS WATER CONSERVATION REBATE 2016-17 4 100.00
10/28/2016 6998 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES PO#73728-CONST MARKING PAINT/MARK PAINT SOLV/GAT... 573.20
10/28/2016 6999 GRAYBAR 705.30
10/28/2016 7000 MERCHANT TRANSPORT AND AFFILIATES PO#73675-BOOM TRUCK RENTAL 324.00
10/28/2016 7001 MICHAEL G. COCCIA WATER CONSERVATION REBATE 2016-17 5 200.00
10/28/2016 7002 ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING COMPANY PO#73693-HYPOCHLORITE SOLUTIONS 1,450.00
10/28/2016 7003 RevSpring, Inc. PO#73802-STATEMENTS 3,642.04
10/28/2016 7004 REXNORD INDUSTRIES LLC PO#73823-REPLACEMENT SEAL 69.23
10/28/2016 7005 STUART PRICE WATER CONSERVATION REBATE 2016-17 3 110.00
10/28/2016 7006 THE BUSHEL STOP, INC. PO#73811-1/2 PALLET OF SOD 115.02

Page 104



Date Num Name Memo Credit

10/28/2016 7007 WILLIAM LOPERFIDO WATER CONSERVATION REBATE 2016-17 2 185.85
10/28/2016 7008 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS U.S.A., INC. PO#73697-GOODWIN PUMP RENTAL FROM 10/4/16 TO 10/1... 1,597.00

Total 5-00002 · SUNTRUST (WS Operating) #7918 182,525.42

Total Checking/Savings 742,766.27

Total Current Assets 742,766.27

TOTAL ASSETS 742,766.27

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Page 105



Date Num Name Memo Credit

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1-00001 · SUNTRUST (GF operating) #1363

10/10/2016 6485 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF FL SEPTEMBER 2016 HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 60,157.19
10/14/2016 6499 FPL PO#73759-ELECTRICAL SERVICES 39,655.75
10/14/2016 6501 Johnson-Davis Incorporated 182,844.33
10/21/2016 6517 C&C Consultants PO#73809-PREMISES ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY POLICY ... 39,797.00
10/25/2016 6534 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF FL OCTOBER 2016 HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 60,157.19
10/28/2016 6536 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF FL NOVEMBER 2016 HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 61,626.54

Total 1-00001 · SUNTRUST (GF operating) #1363 444,238.00

5-00002 · SUNTRUST (WS Operating) #7918
10/21/2016 6988 WATER WERKS, INC. PO#73456-FLOW IQ2100 RADIO READ METER 82,500.00

Total 5-00002 · SUNTRUST (WS Operating) #7918 82,500.00

Total Checking/Savings 526,738.00

Total Current Assets 526,738.00

TOTAL ASSETS 526,738.00

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

St Lucie West Service District
Checks Over $35,000

As of October 31, 2016

Page 106



Oct 31, 16

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1-00001 · SUNTRUST (GF operating) #1363 685,611.54
1-00002 · SUNTRUST (GF R&R Fund) # 3968 1,044,113.89
5-00001 · SUNTRUST (WS Deposit) #1355 100,914.20
5-00002 · SUNTRUST (WS Operating) #7918 4,565,379.96

Total Checking/Savings 6,396,019.59

Other Current Assets
1-02000 · GF SLWSD GENERAL ASSETS 333,409.06
2-01000 · WB WTR MGMT BEN 1999A ASSETS 832,696.69
3-01000 · CB CASCADES SRS 1998 ASSETS 65,116.04
5-01000 · WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER ASSETS 54,166,539.09

Total Other Current Assets 55,397,760.88

Total Current Assets 61,793,780.47

Other Assets
000000 · Journal Entry Exchange 2,465.25

Total Other Assets 2,465.25

TOTAL ASSETS 61,796,245.72

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 58,303.90

Total Accounts Payable 58,303.90

Other Current Liabilities
1-03000 · GF SLWSD GENERAL LIAB -461,460.91
2-02000 · WB WTR MGMT BEN 1999A LIAB 46,018.44
3-02000 · CB CASCADES SRS 1998 LIAB 8,073.78
5-02000 · WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER LIAB 38,367,655.23

Total Other Current Liabilities 37,960,286.54

Total Current Liabilities 38,018,590.44

Total Liabilities 38,018,590.44

Equity
1-01000 · GF SLWSD GENERAL FND BAL 827,947.27
2-03000 · WB WTR MGMT BEN 1999A FND BAL 3,364,957.58
3-03000 · CB CASCADES SRS 1998 FND BAL 352,271.63
32000 · Retained Earnings 6,931,337.85
4-02000 · CP WMB CAP PROJECTS FUND BAL 3,188,817.19
5-03000 · WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER FND BAL 9,724,940.02
Net Income -612,616.26

Total Equity 23,777,655.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 61,796,245.72

St Lucie West Service District
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2016

Page 107



Page 108



 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 
 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 6  Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R Account Requisitions 
_________________________________________________________________________  

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Attached for your review and approval is a request to transfer funds from the Renewal & 
Replacement Account (R&R) for expenses that are previously budgeted project-related expenses 
for FY 2015/2016 & FY 2016/2017 and have been previously approved by the Board to be funded 
from one of the above mentioned accounts. 
 
All of the expenditures are appropriate for payment from the R&R Account. All expenditures are 
in compliance with the District’s policy where the cost exceeds the capitalization threshold for 
Fixed Assets. 
 

 $58,451.50 – Renewal & Replacement Account (FY 2015/2016) 

 $1, 597.00 – Renewal & Replacement Account (FY 2016/2017) 

All Invoices for this requisition are attached for your review.  

 

Recommendation                                                                                                                                        
. 
Staff recommends Board approval to transfer funds from the R&R Account for $58,451.50 (FY 
2015/2016) and $1,597.00 (FY 2016/2017) to the Public Fund Checking account for 
reimbursement for payments made that have been budgeted to be funded by this account. 
                                                                                                                                                   

Budget Impact 

 

None. 

                                                                                                                                                               

Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

                                                                                                                                                               

Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Supervisors’ Requests

Page 116



Adjournment

Page 117


	St. Lucie West Services District - December 6, 2016 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Approval of Minutes
	October 31, 2016 Workshop Minutes
	November 1, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	PH – Consider Resolution No. 2015-08 – Amending Chapter A-I of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District – General and Procedural Rules; Providing an Effective Date

	District Attorney
	DA 1 – Status Report/Updates

	District Engineer
	DE 1 – Status Report/Updates

	District Manager
	DM 1 – Consider Approval of Agreement for Legal Services with the Law Offices of David Miklas, PA
	DM 2 – Other Items/Updates

	Consent Agenda
	CA 1 – Monthly Report on Public Works Department
	CA 2 – Monthly Report on Utilities Operations
	CA 3 – Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects
	CA 4 – Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service
	CA 5 – Financial Statements for October, 2016
	CA 6 – Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R Account Requisitions





